
 

 

 
 

MEETING 
 

ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 

DATE AND TIME 
 

TUESDAY 16TH SEPTEMBER, 2014 
 

AT 7.00 PM 

VENUE 
 

HENDON TOWN HALL, THE BURROUGHS, LONDON NW4 4AX 

 
TO: MEMBERS OF ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE (Quorum 3) 
 

Chairman: Councillor Dean Cohen (BSc) Hons 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Brian Salinger 
 

Councillors 
 

Maureen Braun 
Brian Salinger 
Claire Farrier 
 

John Hart BA (Hons) MA  
Dr Devra Kay 
Joan Scannell 
 

Alan Schneiderman 
Agnes Slocombe 
Laurie Williams 

 
Substitute Members 
 
Councillors 
 

Sury Khatri BSc (Hons) MSc 
(Lond) 
Adam Langleben 
 

Nagus Narenthira 
Tim Roberts  

Lisa Rutter 
Stephen Sowerby MA 
 
 

 
 
You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached. 

 

Andrew Nathan – Head of Governance 

 
Governance Services contact: Maria Lugangira 020 8359 2761 

maria.lugangira@barnet.gov.uk 
 

Media Relations contact: Sue Cocker 020 8359 7039 
 

ASSURANCE GROUP 
 



 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

Item No Title of Report Pages 

1.   Minutes of the previous meeting  
 

 

2.   Absence of Members  
 

 

3.   Declarations of Members' Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and 
Non-Pecuniary Interests  
 

 

4.   Report of the Monitoring Officer (if any)  
 

 

5.   Public Questions and Comments (if any)  
 

 

6.   Members' Items  
 

 

a)   Members' Item - Welsh Harp  
 

 

1 - 4 

7.   Local Implementation Plan Annual Spending Submission 2015/16  
 

5 - 44 

8.   London Safer Lorries Scheme - Revised Delegation of Authority to 
Make Traffic Orders  
 

45 - 54 

9.   Committee Forward Work Programme  
 

55 - 62 

10.   Any Other Items that the Chairman Decides are Urgent  
 

 

 
 

FACILITIES FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES 

Hendon Town Hall has access for wheelchair users including lifts and toilets.  If you wish to let 
us know in advance that you will be attending the meeting, please telephone Maria Lugangira 
020 8359 2761 maria.lugangira@barnet.gov.uk.  People with hearing difficulties who have a 
text phone, may telephone our minicom number on 020 8203 8942.  All of our Committee 
Rooms also have induction loops. 

 
 

FIRE/EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to the nearest exit by uniformed 
custodians.  It is vital you follow their instructions. 
 



 
 
 

 

    

You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts. 
 
Do not stop to collect personal belongings 
 
Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move some 
distance away and await further instructions. 
 
Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Summary 

The report informs the Environment Committee of a Member’s Item and requests 
instructions from the Committee. 

 

Recommendations  

1. The Environment Committee’s instructions in relation to this Member’s item 
are requested. 

 
  

 

Environment Committee 
 

16 September 2014  

Title  Members’ Item – Welsh Harp 

Report of Head of Governance 

Wards All 

Status Public 

Enclosures                         N/A 

Officer Contact Details  
Andrew Nathan, Head of Governance 
andrew.nathan@barnet.gov.uk  020 8359 7029 

AGENDA ITEM 6a

1



1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 

1.1 Councillor John Hart has requested on 4 August 2014 that a Member’s Item 
be considered on: 

 
‘The problem of illegal campers on the Welsh Harp terrain and the cost inflicted on the Green 

Spaces budget that their removal and subsequent cleaning-up inflicts’.  
 

1.2 Relevant officers will be present at the meeting to respond to queries. 
 
 
2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
2.1 No recommendations have been made.  The Environment Committee are 

therefore requested to give consideration to the issues raised and provide 
instruction. 
 
 

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 

3.1 N/A.  
 
 

4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

4.1 Post decision implementation will depend on the decision taken by the 
Committee. 
 
 

5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 

5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
 

5.1.1 As and when issues raised through a Member’s Item are progressed, they will 
need to be evaluated against the Corporate Plan and other relevant policies. 
 

5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 
Property, Sustainability) 
 

5.2.1 None in the context of this report. 
 

5.3 Legal and Constitutional References 
 
5.3.1 Council’s Constitution, Meeting Procedure Rules (Section 6) provides that a 

Member, including appointed substitute Members of a Committee may have 
one item only on an agenda that he/she serves.  Members items must be 
within the term of reference of the decision making body which will consider 
the item.  
 

5.3.2 Paragraph 6.3 states that the Head of Governance must receive written notice 
of a Member’s item, at least seven clear working days before the meeting. 

2



Any item received after 5pm will be recorded as received on the next working 
day. Items received after that time will only be dealt with at the meeting if the 
Chairman agrees they are urgent. 
 

5.3.3 Council Constitution, Responsibility for Functions, Annex A – details the terms 
of reference of the Environment Committee which includes “parks and open 
spaces.” 
 

5.3.4 There are no legal references in the context of this report. 
 
5.4 Risk Management 

 
5.4.1 None in the context of this report.    
 
5.5 Equalities and Diversity  

 
5.5.1 Member’s Items allow Members of a Committee to bring a wide range of 

issues to the attention of a Committee in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution.  All of these issues must be considered for their equalities and 
diversity implications.  
 

5.6 Consultation and Engagement 
 

5.6.1 None in the context of this report. 
 
 

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
6.1 E-mail to Head of Governance  dated 2 August 2014 
 

3



4

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Summary 
The report identifies proposals for the 2015/16 Local Implementation Plan Annual Spending 
Submission to Transport for London that endeavour to remain close to the Delivery Plan 
proposals previously identified to TfL while taking into account new information and making 
provision for a changed approach to 20mph proposals. 
 
Details mainly relate to distribution of formula allocated funding across a ‘Corridors, 
Neighbourhoods and Supporting Measures’ programme and to identification of schemes for 
inclusion in the ‘Principal Road Renewal’ programme that provides maintenance funding for 
borough controlled ‘A’ roads. 
 

 

Recommendations  
1. That the Committee approve the proposals set out in Appendix 1 for inclusion 

in Barnet’s 2015/16 LIP Annual Spending Submission to TfL. 
 
 

 
 

 

Environment Committee 
 

16 September 2014 
  

Title  
Local Implementation Plan Annual 
Spending Submission 2015/16 

Report of 
Declan Hoare, Lead Commissioner for Housing & 
Environment 

Wards All 

Status Public 

Enclosures                         
Appendix 1 – 2015/16 LIP Annual Spending Submission 
proposals 
Appendix 2 – LIP ‘refreshed’ delivery plan (2014/15-2016/17) 

Officer Contact Details  
Declan Hoare, Declan.hoare@barnet.gov.uk 020 8359 4320 
Jane Shipman, (Senior Engineer, Re), 
jane.shipman@barnet.gov.uk 020 8359 7226 

AGENDA ITEM 7

5



1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 
1.1 The Annual Spending Submission (ASS) to Transport for London (TfL) for 

Local Implementation Plan (LIP) funding for the 2015/16 financial year is due 

to be submitted by 3 October 2014. 

1.2 TfL provide core funding for the implementation of the LIP is provided by TfL 

through a “Corridors, Neighbourhoods and Supporting Measures” programme 

for addressing a range of transport issues, separate maintenance 

programmes for Principal Roads and Bridges based on condition and a 

borough discretionary budget of £100k for use for any transport purpose. A 

Major schemes programme is subject to a separate bidding process.  The 

programmes are described in more detail in Table 1. 

Programme Description Detail 

Corridors, 

Neighbourhood 

and Supporting 

Measures 

Holistic or area-based 
interventions including bus 
priority and accessibility, 
cycling, walking, safety 
measures, 20 mph zones 
and limits, freight, 
regeneration, environment, 
accessibility and controlled 
parking zones. This 
programme also includes 
expenditure on cycle 
parking, cycle training, 
shared space, car clubs, 
reduction of clutter, 
installation of electric vehicle 
charging points, school and 
workplace travel plans, 
behavioural change, 
education, training and 
publicity. 

Formula allocated. 
Schemes for spending 
this identified and 
approved by TfL through 
annual spending 
submission process. 
Allocation £3,300k for 
2015/16 

Principal road 

renewal 

Maintenance programme for 

Borough Principal Roads 

(borough A roads)  

Indicative allocation for 

Principal Roads for 

2015/16 in Barnet is 

£1,105k. TfL recommend 

making funding 

applications for schemes 

about 25% above this 

value to enable reserve 

schemes to be readily 

brought forward if 

required. Proposals are 

identified from condition 

survey information. 

Bridge Maintenance programme for Submissions will be made 

6



strengthening 

and 

assessment 

Bridges based on need identified 

from inspection reports. 

These are prioritised and 

funding awarded 

according to pan-London 

requirements 

Local Transport 

Funding 

£100k is provided to each 

borough for any transport 

purpose.  

The LIP delivery plan 

identifies that in Barnet 

this will be used for 

Borough Road 

Resurfacing. Locations 

will be identified from 

condition surveys as for 

borough funded road 

resurfacing. 

Major schemes Major scheme funding is 

subject to a separate 

bidding process and relates 

to interventions generally 

costing more than £1m over 

the whole life of the project. 

If other schemes are bid 

for these will also be 

identified in the ASS 

Table 1 - LIP funded programmes 

1.3 In April 2012 the Mayor of London approved the Local Implementation Plan 

(LIP) for Barnet that was produced in response to the Mayor’s Transport 

Strategy (MTS) published in May 2010. The approved LIP incorporated a 

Delivery Plan for the period 2011/12 to 2013/14 to deliver the priorities 

identified in the LIP. 

1.4 In 2013 all the London boroughs updated their Second LIPs to include a 

refreshed Delivery Plan for the period from 2014/15 to 2016/17. These were 

agreed by TfL in December 2013 and TfL expect these to form the basis for 

each authority’s 2015/16 LIP Annual Spending Submission. 

1.5 The 2015/16 annual spending submission (ASS) proposal included in 

Appendix 1 is therefore based on the programme of investment included in 

the refreshed delivery plan (Appendix 2). 

1.6 When the delivery plan was compiled an expected LIP allocation figure for 

2014/15 for most programmes was available from TfL. Some information was 

also available regarding future year LIP funding which was also used to inform 

the delivery plan. A reduced allocation for 2014/15 for the Corridors, 

Neighbourhoods & Supporting Measures programme was subsequently 

confirmed, and this is reflected in Appendix 1 together with the 2015/16 ASS 

proposal. 

1.7 Expected allocations for 2015/16 are now available and this has been used to 

inform the 2015/16 annual spending submission. 

7



1.8 The Cabinet agreed in March 2014 recommendations arising from the 20mph 

Zones Task and Finish Group that included introducing a dedicated policy on 

20 mph limits and zones to allow schools in the borough to ‘opt-in’ for a 20 

mph limit/zone and to consider other locations on a case by case basis. While 

schemes resulting from this might be implemented from the provision made 

for ‘Traffic Management and Accident Reduction’ and ‘School Travel Plan 

Schemes’ the opportunity has been taken to make additional dedicated 

provision within the programme for 20mph proposals going forward. 

1.9 Adjustments have also been where more information or other funding means 

that reduced LIP funding will be needed for particular proposals. 

 

2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

2.1 The proposals have endeavoured to remain close to the Delivery Plan 

proposals to deliver the borough transport objectives while taking account of 

new information and making provision for the changed approach to 20mph 

proposals.  Further information on reasons for changes from the delivery plan 

for specific proposals is included in Appendix 1. 

 
3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 

 
3.1 Alternative detailed approaches might be introduced to manage the funding 

available while delivering on the borough transport priorities. These include 

not making specific provision for 20mph schemes or adjusting the allocation of 

funding between proposals. 

 
4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 

 
4.1 Once the recommendation has been approved the proposals will be 

incorporated in borough’s Annual Spending Submission to TfL via a pro-forma 

spreadsheet or direct to the TfL Borough Portal (a web based tool developed 

by TfL to manage allocation of funds, reporting, forecasting and subsequently 

claiming of funding). TfL generally approve the schemes submitted in 

December.  Once schemes are approved and funding agreed it is intended 

that a more detailed programme, especially for the packages of smaller scale 

proposals referred to in the comments column in Appendix 1, will be provided 

to the committee for approval prior to the start of the 2014/15 financial year. 

 
5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  

 
5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
5.2 The Local Implementation Plan (LIP) delivery plan and 2015/16 ASS 

contribute to the Corporate Priorities through delivery of the LIP transport 

objectives. 

5.3 The LIP transport objectives (which are supported by a number of sub-

objectives and closely reflect policy CS9 of the Local Plan core strategy) are: 

8



• Ensuring more efficient use of the local road network, 

• Taking a comprehensive approach to tackling the school run 

• Delivery of high quality transport systems in regeneration areas 

• More environmentally friendly transport networks 
5.4 These particularly help deliver the strategic objective to “promote responsible 

growth, development and success across the borough” and the outcome “to 

maintain a well-designed, attractive and accessible place, with sustainable 

infrastructure across the borough”. 

 
5.5 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 

Property, Sustainability) 
5.6 Core funding for the implementation of the LIP is provided by TfL through a 

“Corridors, Neighbourhoods and Supporting Measures” programme for 

addressing a range of transport issues, separate maintenance programmes 

for Principal Roads and Bridges based on condition and a borough 

discretionary budget of £100k for use for any transport purpose. 

5.7 The Annual Spending Submission provides the means by which proposals are 

submitted and agreed by TfL. 

5.8 Approved funding will be incorporated into the 2015/16 budget. 

 
5.9 Legal and Constitutional References 
5.10 Section 145 of the Greater London Authority Act 1999 (GLA Act) requires 

each London borough to prepare a Local Implementation Plan (LIP) 

containing proposals for the implementation of the Mayor’s Transport Strategy 

in its area. 

5.11 Guidance issued in 2010 under section 144 of the GLA Act in relation to 

preparation of the LIP provided for provision of a refreshed plan for 2014/15-

2015/16 that explicitly would not constitute a formal revision of the LIP but, as 

identified in further guidance in 2013, would be approved by TfL subject to it 

meeting certain core requirements. 

5.12 Section 159 of the GLA Act allows TfL to provide financial assistance to 

support provision of transport facilities or services within Greater London.   

5.13 The Council Constitution – Responsibility for Functions Appendix A identifies 

the terms of reference of the Environment Committee as including specific 

responsibilities for commissioning “Street Scene including  pavements and all 

classes of roads”, “Road Safety” and “Transport and traffic management 

including agreement of London Transport Strategy-Local Implementation 

Plan” 

 
5.14 Risk Management 
5.15 There is a risk that failure to submit documents (or to submit them on time) 

would affect access to funding through TfL’s LIP funding programmes which 

would compromise Barnet’s ability to deliver its LIP objectives. 

5.16 Other risks associated with the LIP delivery plan and LIP funding more 

generally are identified in the delivery plan document. 

9



 

5.17 Equalities and Diversity  
5.18 The annual spending submission includes programmes of road safety 

education initiatives and small scale traffic management and safety schemes 

that will tend to benefit groups currently disproportionately affected by road 

traffic collisions. This can include young people and older people, males, and 

some minority ethnic groups.  Inclusion of provision for 20mph proposals 

especially near schools is expected to particularly benefit children. 

5.19 Measures are also included to support cycling. The LIP equalities impact 

assessment identified that cycling was a higher priority among minority ethnic 

groups as a whole than among the population as a whole. 

5.20 A reduced allocation is included in relation to provision of accessible bus 

stops which would help to advance equality of opportunity for disabled people 

accessing the transport system, but this is in the context of acceleration of the 

programme in 2014/15 through other funding. 

5.21 The programme as a whole is not considered to compromise the Council in its 

compliance of the statutory equality duty. Detailed impacts of specific 

proposals will receive further consideration as they are developed and 

implemented. 

 

5.22 Consultation and Engagement 
5.23 Specific consultation in relation to the 2015/16 ASS has not been undertaken. 

5.24 Public consultation was undertaken in relation to development of the original 

LIP and future statutory and non-statutory consultation will apply to 

implementation of various proposals contained within it. 

 
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
6.1 DPR 1517 - Local Implementation Plan (submission for approval by Mayor of 

London) 28/02/2012 
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=3824 

6.2 Guidance on Developing the Second Local Implementation Plans – May 2010 
http://tfl.gov.uk/cdn/static/cms/documents/lip2-guidance-may-2010.pdf 

6.3 Other guidance documents provided by TfL: “Local Implementation Plan (LIP) 
2014/15 to 2016/17 Delivery Plan, Interim Targets and Annual Spending 
Submission Guidance” and “Local Implementation Plan (LIP) 2015/16 Annual 
Spending Submission Guidance” are also available. 

 
 

10



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 -
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 L
IP
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
S
p
e
n
d
in
g
 S
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

 C
o
rr
id
o
rs
, 
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 M
e
a
s
u
re
s
 (
C
N
S
M
) 

W
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 p
la
n
 w
a
s
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a
n
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 L
IP
 a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
ig
u
re
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 w
a
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 T
fL
. 
S
o
m
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 a
ls
o
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 f
u
tu
re
 y
e
a
r 
L
IP
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 w
h
ic
h
 w
a
s
 a
ls
o
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm

 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 p
la
n
. 
It
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 e
m
e
rg
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 f
o
rm

u
la
 

a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 C
S
N
M
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 £
2
0
5
k
 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 a
d
v
is
e
d
. 
 T
h
is
 a
ls
o
 h
a
s
 s
o
m
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 a
s
s
u
m
p
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

(a
n
d
 2
0
1
6
/1
7
) 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
e
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 f
o
rm

u
la
 a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
C
N
S
M
 i
s
 n
o
w
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 b
e
 £
3
,3
0
0
k
 (
c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 w
it
h
 a
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 p
la
n
 f
ig
u
re
 o
f 
£
3
,4
6
6
k
).
  
A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
it
e
m
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w
h
e
re
 m
o
re
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
r 
o
th
e
r 
fu
n
d
in
g
 m

e
a
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 m
ig
h
t 
re
a
s
o
n
a
b
ly
 b
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
. 
P
ro
v
is
io
n
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 m
a
d
e
 

fo
r 
2
0
m
p
h
 z
o
n
e
/l
im
it
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
. 
O
n
e
 u
n
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 b
a
la
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
u
n
d
in
g
. 
 P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 p
la
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
s
e
 a
re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t
a
b
le
 1
 b
e
lo
w
 i
n
 r
e
d
 a
n
d
 u
n
d
e
rl
in
e
d
. 
F
ig
u
re
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
6
/1
7
 a
re
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 b
u
t 
w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 2
0
1
6
/1
7
 A
S
S
 n
e
x
t 
y
e
a
r.
  
 

 S
o
m
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
re
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 b
e
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 f
ro
m
 o
th
e
r 
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 i
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 L
IP
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 –
 t
h
e
s
e
 a
re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 a
b
b
re
v
ia
ti
o
n
s
 b
e
lo
w
. 

M
A
Q
F
 –
 M
a
y
o
r’
s
 A
ir
 Q
u
a
lit
y
 S
c
h
e
m
e
  

B
C
P
 –
 T
fL
’s
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
y
c
le
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

S
1
0
6
 –
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
e
r 
s
1
0
6
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 

 P
ri
n
c
ip
a
l 
R
o
a
d
 R
e
n
e
w
a
l 
F
u
n
d
in
g
: 
T
h
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
ti
v
e
 a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
P
ri
n
c
ip
a
l 
R
o
a
d
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
5
/1
6
 i
n
 B
a
rn
e
t 
is
 £
1
,1
0
5
k
. 
T
fL
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 m

a
k
in
g
 

fu
n
d
in
g
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 a
b
o
u
t 
2
5
%
 a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
is
 v
a
lu
e
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
a
d
ily
 b
ro
u
g
h
t 
fo
rw
a
rd
 i
f 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
. 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
 s
u
rv
e
y
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 a
re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t
a
b
le
 2
 b
e
lo
w
. 

 B
ri
d
g
e
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 S
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
in
g
: 
S
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 n
e
e
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
ro
m
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 a
re
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
 

a
n
d
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 a
w
a
rd
e
d
 a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
 t
o
 p
a
n
-L
o
n
d
o
n
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

 L
o
c
a
l 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 F
u
n
d
in
g
: 
£
1
0
0
k
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 e
a
c
h
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 f
o
r 
a
n
y
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
. 
T
h
e
 L
IP
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 p
la
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
in
 B
a
rn
e
t 
th
is
 w
ill
 

b
e
 u
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
B
o
ro
u
g
h
 R
o
a
d
 R
e
s
u
rf
a
c
in
g
. 
L
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
ro
m
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
 s
u
rv
e
y
s
 a
s
 f
o
r 
b
o
ro
u
g
h
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 r
o
a
d
 r
e
s
u
rf
a
c
in
g
. 

 M
a
jo
r 
S
c
h
e
m
e
 F
u
n
d
in
g
: 
M
a
jo
r 
s
c
h
e
m
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 i
s
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 b
id
d
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 
A
n
y
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 w
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 r
e
fe
re
n
c
e
d
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 i
n
 t
h
e
 A
S
S
. 

 

11



 T
a
b
le
 1
 -
 C
o
rr
id
o
rs
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 &
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 M
e
a
s
u
re
s
  

S
c
h
e
m
e
 t
it
le
 a
n
d
 o
ri
g
in
a
l 

d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

F
u
n
d
in
g
 

s
o
u
rc
e
 

O
ri
g
in
a
l 
D
e
li
v
e
ry
 

P
la
n
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 £
k
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 1
5
/1
6
 

A
S
S
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

1
4
/1
5
 o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 

b
u
d
g
e
t)
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 /
 A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 

1
4
/1
5
 

1
5
/1
6
 
1
6
/1
7
 
1
4
/1
5
 
1
5
/1
6
 
1
6
/1
7
 

N
o
rt
h
 F
in
c
h
le
y
 C
le
a
n
e
r 
A
ir
 P
ro
je
c
t 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
-2
0
1
5
/1
6
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
in
c
o
rp
o
ra
ti
n
g
 •
 

G
re
e
n
 i
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 c
o
m
p
ri
s
in
g
 g
re
e
n
 w

a
ll 

(b
u
s
 s
ta
ti
o
n
 o
r 
T
a
lly
 H

o
 A
rt
s
 D

e
p
o
t)
 •
 T
re
e
s
 

a
n
d
 s
h
ru
b
s
 t
o
 a
b
s
o
rb
 N

O
x
 •
 A
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 e
v
e
n
t 

• 
A
 b
a
s
e
lin

e
 s
u
rv
e
y
 •
 R

e
p
e
a
t 
s
u
rv
e
y
 i
n
 3
 

y
e
a
rs
 t
im

e
 •
 D

e
v
e
lo
p
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
e
le
c
tr
ic
 v
e
h
ic
le
 c
h
a
rg
in
g
 

p
o
in
ts
 •
 C

y
c
le
 s
ta
n
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 •
 C

a
m
p
a
ig
n
 

w
o
rk
 w

it
h
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 •
 U

s
e
 o
f 
v
a
c
a
n
t 
s
h
o
p
s
 a
s
 

“p
o
p
-u
p
” 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
.•
 

A
ir
 q
u
a
lit
y
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
/I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 b
o
a
rd
s
 a
n
d
 

s
ig
n
a
g
e
 

L
IP
 

8
0
 

8
0
 

 
7
5
 

2
0
 

 
G
re
e
n
 w

a
ll 
n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 p
ro
c
e
e
d
. 
R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
2
0
1
5
/1
6
 L
IP
 f
u
n
d
in
g
. 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 L
IP
 

fu
n
d
in
g
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
ls
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 (
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
n
g
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 L
IP
 f
u
n
d
in
g
).
 

 C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 M

A
Q
F
 s
p
e
n
d
 p
ro
fi
le
 r
e
fl
e
c
ti
n
g
 s
ta
ff
 

re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
d
e
la
y
s
. 

M
A
Q
F
 

8
0
  

8
0
  

 
6
5
 

1
3
8
 

 

E
le
c
tr
ic
 V
e
h
ic
le
 C
h
a
rg
in
g
 P
o
in
ts
 

In
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
E
le
c
tr
ic
 V
e
h
ic
le
 C

h
a
rg
e
 

P
o
in
ts
 b
u
ild

in
g
 o
n
 w

o
rk
 u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 i
n
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 t
o
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
y
p
e
 a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
c
h
a
rg
e
 

p
o
in
ts
 t
o
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
. 

L
IP
 

5
0
 

5
0
 

5
0
 

5
0
 

5
0
 

5
0
 

In
it
ia
l 
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
im

p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 i
n
 1
4
/1
5
 

a
n
d
 1
5
/1
6
 (
p
a
rt
) 
a
re
: 

 B
u
n
n
s
 L
a
n
e
 C

a
r 
P
a
rk
 (
M
ill
 H

ill
) 

E
a
s
t 
F
in
c
h
le
y
 H

ig
h
 R

o
a
d
 

F
in
c
h
le
y
 R

o
a
d
 (
T
e
m
p
le
 F
o
rt
u
n
e
) 

 L
o
d
g
e
 L
a
n
e
 C

a
r 
P
a
rk
 h
a
s
 a
ls
o
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 N

o
rt
h
 F
in
c
h
le
y
 A
ir
 Q

u
a
lit
y
 

S
c
h
e
m
e
 

C
y
c
le
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
b
a
s
e
d
 c
y
c
le
 t
ra
in
in
g
, 
a
d
u
lt
 c
y
c
le
 

tr
a
in
in
g
, 
o
th
e
r 
c
h
ild

 c
y
c
le
 t
ra
in
in
g
, 
 t
o
 

p
ro
v
id
e
:-
 Y
r 
6
 p
u
p
ils
 ,
 s
m
a
ll 
g
ro
u
p
 (
B
ik
a
b
ili
ty
 

le
v
e
l 
2
) 
 -
 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
u
p
ils
, 
1
-2
-1
 

tr
a
in
in
g
, 
w
it
h
 a
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 r
o
u
te
 f
ro
m
 

L
IP
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

 

B
C
P
 

5
6
 

5
8
 

6
7
 

5
6
 

5
8
 

6
7
 

12



S
c
h
e
m
e
 t
it
le
 a
n
d
 o
ri
g
in
a
l 

d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

F
u
n
d
in
g
 

s
o
u
rc
e
 

O
ri
g
in
a
l 
D
e
li
v
e
ry
 

P
la
n
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 £
k
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 1
5
/1
6
 

A
S
S
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

1
4
/1
5
 o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 

b
u
d
g
e
t)
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 /
 A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 

1
4
/1
5
 

1
5
/1
6
 
1
6
/1
7
 
1
4
/1
5
 
1
5
/1
6
 
1
6
/1
7
 

h
o
m
e
 t
o
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
(B

ik
e
a
b
ili
ty
 l
e
v
e
l 
3
) 
 a
n
d
 

a
d
u
lt
 1
-2
-1
 a
n
d
 s
m
a
ll 
g
ro
u
p
s
 (
fo
c
u
s
 o
n
 

in
c
re
a
s
in
g
 s
k
ill
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 

re
g
u
la
r 
c
y
c
lin

g
) 

P
a
rk
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
p
a
rk
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 t
o
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
o
w
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
, 

c
o
n
g
e
s
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

h
u
b
s
 e
tc
 

L
IP
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
d
is
a
b
le
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
s
 

L
IP
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

 

2
0
m
p
h
 z
o
n
e
s
/l
im
it
s
 a
n
d
 V
A
 s
ig
n
s
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 o
f 
2
0
1
3
/1
4
 2
0
m
p
h
 

z
o
n
e
 a
n
d
 V
e
h
ic
le
 A
c
tu
a
te
d
 s
ig
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 

L
IP
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

0
 

0
 

It
 a
p
p
e
a
rs
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 w

ill
 b
e
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 

to
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
. 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 o
f 
B
u
s
 

G
a
te
/W

id
th
 r
e
s
tr
ic
ti
o
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 o
f 
2
0
1
3
/1
4
 b
u
s
 g
a
te
 

a
n
d
 w

id
th
 r
e
s
tr
ic
ti
o
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
m
it
ig
a
ti
o
n
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 a
s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

L
IP
 

5
0
 

5
0
 

5
0
 

5
0
 

0
 

0
 

It
 a
p
p
e
a
rs
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 w

ill
 b
e
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 

to
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
. 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 o
f 
d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
a
l 

S
ig
n
a
g
e
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 o
f 
2
0
1
3
/1
4
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
ig
n
a
g
e
 t
o
: 

(a
) 
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
is
e
 s
ig
n
in
g
 o
n
 m

a
jo
r 
ro
u
te
s
; 

(b
) 
E
n
s
u
re
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y
 w

it
h
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 

fr
o
m
 s
ig
n
in
g
 o
n
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 r
o
a
d
 n
e
tw

o
rk
; 

(c
) 
P
ro
v
id
e
 o
r 
im

p
ro
v
e
 s
ig
n
in
g
 t
o
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
 

m
o
s
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 r
o
u
te
; 
a
n
d
 

L
IP
 

5
0
 

5
0
 

5
0
 

5
0
 

0
 

0
 

It
 a
p
p
e
a
rs
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 w

ill
 b
e
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 

to
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
. 

13



S
c
h
e
m
e
 t
it
le
 a
n
d
 o
ri
g
in
a
l 

d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

F
u
n
d
in
g
 

s
o
u
rc
e
 

O
ri
g
in
a
l 
D
e
li
v
e
ry
 

P
la
n
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 £
k
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 1
5
/1
6
 

A
S
S
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

1
4
/1
5
 o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 

b
u
d
g
e
t)
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 /
 A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 

1
4
/1
5
 

1
5
/1
6
 
1
6
/1
7
 
1
4
/1
5
 
1
5
/1
6
 
1
6
/1
7
 

(d
) 
R
e
m
o
v
e
 s
u
p
e
rf
lu
o
u
s
 s
ig
n
in
g
. 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 o
f 
c
y
c
le
 r
o
u
te
 

s
ig
n
a
g
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 o
f 
c
y
c
le
 r
o
u
te
 s
ig
n
a
g
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 t
o
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 s
ig
n
in
g
 t
o
 b
e
tt
e
r 
d
ir
e
c
t 

c
y
c
lis
ts
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 r
o
u
te
, 
a
n
d
 

re
m
o
v
e
 i
n
c
o
rr
e
c
t 
s
ig
n
s
 o
n
: 
D
o
lli
s
 V
a
lle

y
 

R
o
u
te
 (
o
n
-r
o
a
d
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
s
o
m
e
 o
ff
-r
o
a
d
 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 s
ig
n
in
g
 f
ro
m
 s
u
rr
o
u
n
d
in
g
 

a
re
a
s
),
 o
n
-r
o
a
d
 r
o
u
te
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
-h
o
c
 s
ig
n
a
g
e
 

in
 E
d
g
w
a
re
 a
re
a
, 
o
n
 r
o
a
d
 r
o
u
te
s
 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

H
e
n
d
o
n
 a
n
d
 D

o
lli
s
 V
a
lle

y
 

L
IP
 

5
0
 

5
0
 

5
0
 

5
0
 

2
5
 

2
5
 

It
 a
p
p
e
a
rs
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 m

a
y
 b
e
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 

to
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
, 
b
u
t 
o
th
e
r 
a
re
a
s
 

m
a
y
 p
ro
d
u
c
ti
v
e
ly
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
. 
A
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 

fo
r 
1
5
/1
6
 a
n
d
 1
6
/1
7
 i
s
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
 a
n
d
 p
ic
k
 u
p
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
it
e
m
s
. 

T
ra
ff
ic
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 a
c
c
id
e
n
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

S
m
a
ll 
s
c
a
le
 t
ra
ff
ic
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

a
c
c
id
e
n
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 a
d
d
re
s
s
in
g
 

lo
c
a
lis
e
d
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r.
 

L
IP
 

5
0
0
 

5
0
0
 

5
0
0
 

5
0
0
 

5
0
0
 

5
0
0
 

A
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
5
/1
6
 w

ill
 b
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
b
y
 c
o
m
m
it
te
e
 b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

s
ta
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r.
 

 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 m

a
y
 r
e
la
te
 t
o
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
2
0
m
p
h
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 h
a
s
 a
ls
o
 b
e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 

(s
e
e
 f
o
o
t 
o
f 
ta
b
le
) 

 

C
y
c
le
 r
o
u
te
s
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
c
y
c
le
 r
o
u
te
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 t
o
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
m
in
i-
H
o
lla

n
d
 

e
x
p
re
s
s
io
n
 o
f 
in
te
re
s
t 
a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
ro
u
te
s
 i
n
 

b
o
ro
u
g
h
. 
D
e
ta
ils
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 o
f 

d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 f
u
tu
re
 C

y
c
le
 S
u
p
e
r-

h
ig
h
w
a
y
 a
n
d
 Q

u
ie
tw

a
y
 r
o
u
te
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

b
o
ro
u
g
h
. 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 i
n
 

c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 C

y
c
le
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.
 

L
IP
 

4
0
0
 

4
0
0
 

4
0
0
 

4
0
0
 

4
0
0
 

4
0
0
 

O
th
e
r 
fu
n
d
in
g
 m

a
y
 r
e
s
u
lt
 f
ro
m
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 Q

u
ie
tw

a
y
s
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
, 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 T
fL
 

p
ro
c
u
re
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
. 

 C
u
rr
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 D

o
lli
s
 V
a
lle

y
 

R
o
u
te
, 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
q
u
ie
t 
ro
a
d
 r
o
u
te
s
 p
a
ra
lle

lin
g
 

th
e
 S
ilk
s
tr
e
a
m
 a
n
d
 f
ro
m
 C

ri
c
k
le
w
o
o
d
 t
o
 E
a
s
t 

F
in
c
h
le
y
, 
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
n
g
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 c
y
c
le
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 f
e
a
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 

C
y
c
le
 C

a
m
p
a
ig
n
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b
y
 a
re
 s
u
b
-

c
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
 i
n
 J
u
n
e
. 

14



S
c
h
e
m
e
 t
it
le
 a
n
d
 o
ri
g
in
a
l 

d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

F
u
n
d
in
g
 

s
o
u
rc
e
 

O
ri
g
in
a
l 
D
e
li
v
e
ry
 

P
la
n
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 £
k
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 1
5
/1
6
 

A
S
S
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

1
4
/1
5
 o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 

b
u
d
g
e
t)
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 /
 A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 

1
4
/1
5
 

1
5
/1
6
 
1
6
/1
7
 
1
4
/1
5
 
1
5
/1
6
 
1
6
/1
7
 

C
y
c
le
 p
a
rk
in
g
 

C
y
c
le
 p
a
rk
in
g
 -
 o
n
 s
tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
p
u
b
lic
 

p
la
c
e
s
 

L
IP
 

2
0
 

2
0
 

2
0
 

2
0
 

2
0
 

2
0
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 d
u
e
 t
o
 B
C
P
 a
w
a
rd
 b
e
lo
w
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
. 

(B
C
P
 c
y
c
le
 p
a
rk
in
g
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 a
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
u
m
 f
o
r 

re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
y
c
le
 p
a
rk
in
g
 w

h
ic
h
 i
s
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 h
e
re
).
 

B
C
P
 

2
0
 

2
0
 

2
0
 

7
 

7
 

7
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
T
ra
v
e
l 
s
c
h
e
m
e
s
, 
V
a
ri
o
u
s
 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
w
id
e
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
s
 i
n
 n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 a
ro
u
n
d
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
tr
a
v
e
l 
p
la
n
s
, 

ta
c
k
lin

g
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
ru
n
 t
ra
ff
ic
 a
n
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 

L
IP
 

5
0
0
 

5
0
0
 

5
0
0
 

5
0
0
 

5
0
0
 

5
0
0
 

A
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
5
/1
6
 w

ill
 b
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
b
y
 c
o
m
m
it
te
e
 b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

s
ta
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r.
  

 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 m

a
y
 r
e
la
te
 t
o
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
2
0
m
p
h
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 h
a
s
 a
ls
o
 b
e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 

(s
e
e
 f
o
o
t 
o
f 
ta
b
le
) 

 

L
o
c
a
l 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 A
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 V
a
ri
o
u
s
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

b
o
ro
u
g
h
w
id
e
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
lis
e
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 y
e
a
r 

L
IP
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

 

T
o
w
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

T
o
w
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
 d
e
c
lu
tt
e
ri
n
g
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 a
 r
o
lli
n
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
lu
tt
e
ri
n
g
 i
n
 t
o
w
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 

L
IP
 

5
0
 

5
0
 

5
0
 

5
0
 

5
0
 

5
0
 

 

T
o
w
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

C
h
ip
p
in
g
 B
a
rn
e
t 

J
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
t 
A
1
0
0
0
/ 
j/
w
 W

o
o
d
 

S
tr
e
e
t 
[R

e
v
ie
w
/r
e
fr
e
s
h
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 f
e
a
s
ib
ili
ty
 

w
o
rk
 a
t 
A
1
0
0
0
 j
/w

 W
o
o
d
 S
tr
e
e
t 
fo
r 
re
s
tr
ic
te
d
 

tu
rn
s
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m
e
 w

it
h
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 p
e
d
e
s
tr
ia
n
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 

a
n
d
 s
tr
e
e
ts
c
a
p
e
].
 R

e
v
ie
w
 b
u
s
 s
to
p
p
in
g
/b
u
s
 

L
IP
 

4
0
 

9
0
 

1
0
0
 

4
0
 

9
0
 

1
0
0
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 a
d
ju
s
t 
d
e
fi
n
it
io
n
 o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 

in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 o
th
e
r 
w
o
rk
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
. 

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 f
ro
m
 T
fL
 m

a
y
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila

b
le
 f
o
r 
b
u
s
 

s
to
p
 e
le
m
e
n
ts
 

S
1
0
6
 

 
 

7
0
 

7
0
 

 
0
 

s
1

0
6
 s

p
e

n
d

 d
e

a
d
lin

e
s
 u

n
d

e
rs

to
o

d
 t

o
 a

p
p
ly

 

15



S
c
h
e
m
e
 t
it
le
 a
n
d
 o
ri
g
in
a
l 

d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

F
u
n
d
in
g
 

s
o
u
rc
e
 

O
ri
g
in
a
l 
D
e
li
v
e
ry
 

P
la
n
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 £
k
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 1
5
/1
6
 

A
S
S
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

1
4
/1
5
 o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 

b
u
d
g
e
t)
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 /
 A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 

1
4
/1
5
 

1
5
/1
6
 
1
6
/1
7
 
1
4
/1
5
 
1
5
/1
6
 
1
6
/1
7
 

s
ta
n
d
 p
o
s
it
io
n
s
/ 
tu
rn
in
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
to
 

P
a
rk
 R

o
a
d
 o
n
 H

ig
h
 S
tr
e
e
t 
s
o
u
th
 o
f 
W
o
o
d
 

S
tr
e
e
t 
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 c
o
n
g
e
s
ti
o
n
. 

T
o
w
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
F
in
c
h
le
y
 

C
e
n
tr
a
l 
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
ta
ti
o
n
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
fu
tu
re
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

a
n
d
 b
ri
d
g
e
 w

id
e
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
ta
ile

d
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

fo
r 
C
h
a
v
ill
e
 W

a
y
 s
ta
ti
o
n
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 

L
IP
 

4
0
 

9
0
 

1
0
0
 

4
0
 

9
0
 

1
0
0
 

 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
/T
fL
 

lia
is
o
n
/M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 e
tc
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
L
IP
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
/T
fL
 

lia
is
o
n
/M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 e
tc
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
o
 

in
fo
rm

 i
m
p
a
c
t 
re
p
o
rt
 

L
IP
 

5
0
 

5
0
 

5
0
 

5
0
 

5
0
 

5
0
 

 

B
u
s
 s
to
p
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

(b
o
ro
u
g
h
w
id
e
) 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
b
u
s
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
ri
n
g
 1
7
5
 s
to
p
s
 u
p
 t
o
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 o
v
e
r 
th
re
e
 y
e
a
rs
. 

L
IP
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

5
0
 

5
0
 

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
£
5
0
0
k
 b
u
s
 s
to
p
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 n
o
n
-L
IP
 

fu
n
d
in
g
 f
ro
m
 T
fL
 i
n
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 i
s
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 

a
c
c
e
le
ra
te
 t
h
is
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
a
ro
u
n
d
 9
0
%
 o
f 

s
to
p
s
 a
re
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 s
o
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 f
o
r 

fu
tu
re
 y
e
a
rs
 

T
ra
v
e
l 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

S
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
tr
a
v
e
l 

p
la
n
s
 a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
le
d
 

p
la
n
s
 

L
IP
 

4
0
0
 

4
0
0
 

4
0
0
 

4
0
0
 

4
0
0
 

4
0
0
 

 

S
1
0
6
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

N
o
m
in
a
l 
fi
g
u
re
s
 

R
o
a
d
 s
a
fe
ty
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
T
ra
in
in
g
 

a
n
d
 P
u
b
lic
it
y
 

S
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
r 

ro
a
d
 s
a
fe
ty
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
tr
a
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 p
u
b
lic
it
y
 

L
IP
 

2
0
0
 

2
0
0
 

2
0
0
 

2
0
0
 

2
0
0
 

2
0
0
 

 

16



S
c
h
e
m
e
 t
it
le
 a
n
d
 o
ri
g
in
a
l 

d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

F
u
n
d
in
g
 

s
o
u
rc
e
 

O
ri
g
in
a
l 
D
e
li
v
e
ry
 

P
la
n
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 £
k
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 1
5
/1
6
 

A
S
S
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

1
4
/1
5
 o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 

b
u
d
g
e
t)
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 /
 A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 

1
4
/1
5
 

1
5
/1
6
 
1
6
/1
7
 
1
4
/1
5
 
1
5
/1
6
 
1
6
/1
7
 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
e
d
e
s
tr
ia
n
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
a
tr
e
 i
n
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 

C
y
c
lin
g
/w
a
lk
in
g
 p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 c
y
c
lin

g
 

a
n
d
 w

a
lk
in
g
 

L
IP
 

2
5
 

2
5
 

2
5
 

2
5
 

2
5
 

2
5
 

 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
c
y
c
lin
g
 

C
y
c
le
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
ta
ff
in
g
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 c
y
c
le
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
n
d
 

o
th
e
r 
c
y
c
lin

g
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

L
IP
 

9
 

2
0
 

3
3
 

9
 

2
0
 

3
3
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 d
u
e
 t
o
 B
C
P
 a
w
a
rd
 l
o
w
e
r 
th
a
n
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 

B
C
P
 

6
6
 

6
6
 

6
6
 

3
0
 

3
0
 

3
0
 

R
o
a
d
s
 t
a
s
k
 f
o
rc
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

R
o
a
d
s
 t
a
s
k
 f
o
rc
e
 t
y
p
o
lo
g
y
 m

a
p
p
in
g
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 f
o
r 
b
o
ro
u
g
h
 r
o
a
d
s
 

L
IP
 

6
5
 

5
0
 

 
6
5
 

5
0
 

 
 

B
o
ro
u
g
h
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 m

o
d
e
lli
n
g
 

B
o
ro
u
g
h
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 m

o
d
e
lli
n
g
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 p
la
n
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.
 S
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 

p
la
n
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 n
o
t 
o
th
e
rw

is
e
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 

L
IP
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

 

C
P
C
 S
a
fe
r 
U
rb
a
n
 D
ri
v
e
r 
T
ra
in
in
g
 

C
P
C
 S
a
fe
r 
U
rb
a
n
 D

ri
v
in
g
 t
ra
in
in
g
 f
o
r 

b
o
ro
u
g
h
 f
le
e
t 
d
ri
v
e
rs
 

L
IP
 

1
 

1
 

1
 

1
 

1
 

1
 

 

B
C
P
 

3
 

1
 

1
 

3
 

1
 

1
 

M
o
v
in
g
 T
ra
ff
ic
 E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 

C
a
m
e
ra
s
 

In
s
ta
lla

ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
a
m
e
ra
s
 a
n
d
 t
ra
ff
ic
 o
rd
e
r 
/ 

s
ig
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
o
 e
n
fo
rc
e
 m

o
v
in
g
 t
ra
ff
ic
 

o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 

L
IP
 

2
0
0
  

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

F
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
is
 i
te
m
 w

ill
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.
 I
t 
is
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 

b
e
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 o
u
ts
id
e
 L
IP
 w

h
e
n
 i
t 
p
ro
c
e
e
d
s
. 

 

F
u
tu
re
 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 v
ia
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
o
th
e
r 

re
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 T
o
w
n
 C

e
n
tr
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

L
IP
 

 
5
9
 

3
3
4
 

 
0
 

3
3
4
 

U
n
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 i
te
m
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 p
la
n
 t
o
 m

a
tc
h
 

a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
. 
R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
5
/1
6
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
2
0
m
p
h
 l
im

it
s
 z
o
n
e
s
. 
 U

s
e
 o
f 

fu
tu
re
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 b
e
 d
e
te
rm

in
e
d
 

17



S
c
h
e
m
e
 t
it
le
 a
n
d
 o
ri
g
in
a
l 

d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

F
u
n
d
in
g
 

s
o
u
rc
e
 

O
ri
g
in
a
l 
D
e
li
v
e
ry
 

P
la
n
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 £
k
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 1
5
/1
6
 

A
S
S
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

1
4
/1
5
 o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 

b
u
d
g
e
t)
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 /
 A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 

1
4
/1
5
 

1
5
/1
6
 
1
6
/1
7
 
1
4
/1
5
 
1
5
/1
6
 
1
6
/1
7
 

2
0
m
p
h
 l
im
it
/z
o
n
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

L
IP
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

2
5
9
 

2
0
0
 

A
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
5
/1
6
 w

ill
 b
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
b
y
 c
o
m
m
it
te
e
 b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

s
ta
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r.
  

T
o
ta
l 
L
IP
 C
N
S
M
 (
e
x
c
 o
th
e
r 
fu
n
d
in
g
) 

 
3
5
3
0
 

3
4
6
6
 

3
6
1
3
 

3
3
2
5
 

3
3
0
0
 

3
5
3
8
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 &
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
a
c
tu
a
l 
/ 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
. 
 2
0
1
6
/1
7
 a
ls
o
 m

a
k
e
s
 s
o
m
e
 

a
llo

w
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 b
e
lo
w
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 p
la
n
 f
ig
u
re
. 
 

  T
a
b
le
 2
 –
 P
ri
n
c
ip
a
l 
R
o
a
d
 r
e
n
e
w
a
l 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2
0

1
5

/2
0

1
6

 P
ri

n
ci

p
a

l 
R

o
a

d
 R

e
n

e
w

a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

R
o

a
d

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

R
o

a
d

 N
a

m
e

  
D

is
tr

ic
t 

Lo
ca

ti
o

n
 

T
y

p
e

 o
f 

W
o

rk
s 

E
st

im
a

te
d

 

co
st

s 
£

 

Le
n

g
th

 

(m
) 

A
re

a
 

(m
2

) 

C
I 

- 

a
v

e
ra

g
e

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 

A
4

0
7

  
C

ri
ck

le
w

o
o

d
 L

a
n

e
  

N
W

2
 

A
5

 t
o

 T
h

o
rv

e
rt

o
n

 R
o

a
d

 

C
a

rr
ia

g
e

w
a

y
 

re
su

rf
a

ci
n

g
 &

 

st
re

n
g

th
e

n
in

g
 

£
1

9
2

,1
7

2
 

4
4

9
 

4
4

9
0

 
7

0
 

  

A
5

0
2

 
G

o
ld

e
rs

 G
re

e
n

 R
o

a
d

 
N

W
1

1
 

H
o

d
fo

rd
 R

o
a

d
 t

o
 H

o
o

p
 L

a
n

e
  

C
a

rr
ia

g
e

w
a

y
 

re
su

rf
a

ci
n

g
 &

 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

in
g

 

£
9

3
,7

8
7

 
2

7
0

 
2

2
0

0
 

7
0

 
  

A
5

0
4

 
F

o
rt

is
 G

re
e

n
  

N
2

 
A

1
0

0
0

 H
ig

h
 R

o
a

d
 E

a
st

 F
in

ch
le

y
 t

o
 

T
w

y
fo

rd
 A

v
e

n
u

e
 

C
a

rr
ia

g
e

w
a

y
 

re
su

rf
a

ci
n

g
 &

 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

in
g

 

£
8

7
,8

2
3

 
2

8
5

 
2

0
5

2
 

7
0

 
  

18



A
5

1
0

9
 

T
o

tt
e

ri
d

g
e

 V
il

la
g

e
  

N
2

0
 

Li
m

e
s 

A
v

e
n

u
e

 t
o

 G
ra

n
g

e
 A

ve
n

u
e

 

C
a

rr
ia

g
e

w
a

y
 

re
su

rf
a

ci
n

g
 &

 

st
re

n
g

th
e

n
in

g
 

£
1

2
8

,4
0

0
 

4
0

0
 

3
0

0
0

 
7

0
 

  

A
1

0
0

0
 

H
ig

h
 R

o
a

d
 -

 

W
h

e
ts

to
n

e
 

N
2

0
 

B
a

xe
n

d
a

le
 t

o
 C

h
a

n
d

o
s 

A
v

e
n

u
e

 

C
a

rr
ia

g
e

w
a

y
 

re
su

rf
a

ci
n

g
 &

 

st
re

n
g

th
e

n
in

g
 

£
3

0
0

,0
0

0
 

4
3

0
 

7
0

0
0

 
7

0
 

  

A
5

1
0

9
 

D
e

a
n

sb
ro

o
k

 R
o

a
d

  
H

A
8

 

R
o

u
n

d
a

b
o

u
t,

 O
ra

n
g

e
 H

il
l 

R
o

a
d

/D
e

a
n

s 
La

n
e

/ 
D

e
a

n
sb

ro
o

k
 

R
o

a
d

 

C
a

rr
ia

g
e

w
a

y
 

re
su

rf
a

ci
n

g
 &

 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

in
g

 

£
6

8
,2

9
3

 
1

1
5

 
1

4
0

0
 

7
0

 
  

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

A
5

0
4

 
F

o
rt

is
 G

re
e

n
  

N
2

 
A

1
0

0
0

 H
ig

h
 R

o
a

d
 E

a
st

 F
in

ch
le

y
 t

o
 

T
w

y
fo

rd
 A

v
e

n
u

e
 

F
o

o
tw

a
y

 r
e

n
e

w
a

l 

a
n

d
 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

in
g

  

£
1

2
9

,9
6

0
 

2
8

5
 

1
3

6
8

 
 

  

A
1

1
0

 
E

a
st

 B
a

rn
e

t 
R

o
a

d
  

E
N

4
 

Ly
tt

o
n

 R
o

a
d

 t
o

 M
a

rg
a

re
t 

R
o

a
d

 

F
o

o
tw

a
y

 r
e

n
e

w
a

l 

a
n

d
 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

in
g

  

£
2

6
8

,6
6

0
 

4
0

4
 

2
8

2
8

 
 

  

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
 

 
 

T
o

ta
l 

£
1

,2
6

9
,0

9
5

 
 

 
 

  

 

19



20

This page is intentionally left blank



46

Delivery Plan 

Delivering the Borough Transport objectives 

The delivery plan includes activities that will deliver the Borough Transport 
Objectives.  The table below identifies proposals for delivering the objectives over the 
life of the Mayors Transport Strategy (ie to 2031). At a minimum the delivery plan will 
be refreshed every three years. This version includes the 2013 refresh. 

Table 1 - Delivering the LIP objectives 

LIP Objectives Means of Delivery 

(1) Ensuring more efficient use of 
the local road network; 

(a) Reduce congestion 
! Congestion reduction schemes introduced through 

wider corridor and area based proposals on main 
road corridors, at specific hotspots and on secondary 
and local distributor roads 

! Series of network management reviews of the 
operation of features or types of control affecting 
operation of the road network including traffic signals 

! Programme of small scale traffic management and 
road safety improvements 

! Coordination of road and street works including 
through the London Permit scheme 

! Review of bus routes in residential areas 

! Major improvements associated with development 
areas and strategic roads including Henlys Corner 
improvement scheme 

! Demand management through land use planning, 
travel planning and information provision 

! School travel initiatives (see separate objective) 

! Parking controls under continuous review 

! Footway parking provision at appropriate locations 

! Development of off road and quiet road cycle route 
improvements 

! Pedestrian and cycle networks in and serving major 
development areas 

! Travel Plan monitoring and support 

(b) Improve the condition of 
roads and footpaths 

! Principal Road renewal - Targeted road maintenance 
based on carriageway condition on Principal Roads 

! Borough funded carriageway and footway 
improvement programme and planned maintenance 

! Bridge Assessment and strengthening – in locations 
prioritised at London wide level 

! Developing Highway Asset Management Plan to 
better manage the condition of the road network 

! Improvements delivered through wider corridor and 
area based proposals 

! Improvements to town centre footpaths/alleyways 

! Localised improvements in and near developments 

(c) Improve the bus network 
(with TfL) 

! Congestion reduction proposals on bus routes (see 
separate congestion objective) 

! Review of bus routes in residential areas 

! Bus network improvements delivered through major 
development schemes (see separate regeneration 

21



47

LIP Objectives Means of Delivery 
area objective) 

! Bus stop accessibility improvements delivered 
through wider corridor and area based improvements, 
town centre enhancement schemes, footway 
improvements and specific programme of schemes 

(d) Make travel safer and 
more attractive 

! Accident reduction schemes introduced through wider 
corridor and area based proposals on main and 
distributor road corridors 

! Road layout and junction improvements in 
conjunction with development proposals 

! Programme of small scale traffic management and 
road safety improvements 

! Pedestrian, cyclist and road safety training 

! Improvements to town centre footpaths/alleyways 

! Public Transport and Town Centre enhancements 
(see separate objectives) 

! Improvement works in vicinity of stations 

! Continue to provide high quality street lighting and 
CCTV coverage of key locations 

(2) Taking a comprehensive 
approach to tackling the school 
run; 

(a) Reduce car based 
journeys and increase levels 
of walking and cycling to and 
from school

! Provide access to School Travel Plan resources 

! Improvements in the vicinity of schools to support 
travel plans  

! School based pedestrian, cycle and road safety 
training 

(b) Reduce pupil parking 
near schools

! Rigorous enforcement of parking restrictions in the 
vicinity of schools 

! Consider new and amended parking restrictions to 
support reduced pupil parking around schools 

(3) Delivery of high quality 
transport systems in 
regeneration areas

(Further information on the transport aspects of these 
development areas follows) 

(a) Comprehensive transport 
solutions in major 
development areas 

! New and improved road, cycle and pedestrian 
networks, improved station and bus network access 
delivered through: 

o Mill Hill East – Area Action Plan 
o Colindale Area Action Plan 
o Regeneration of Stonegrove and Dollis Valley 

priority estates 
o Cricklewood, Brent Cross and West Hendon 

Development Framework 

(b) Public transport 
enhancements (with 
partners) 

! Bus route enhancements, improved public transport 
interchanges and new Cricklewood Station delivered 
through: 

o Mill Hill East – Area Action Plan 
o Colindale Area Action Plan 
o Regeneration of Stonegrove and Dollis Valley 

priority estates 
o Cricklewood, Brent Cross and West Hendon 

Development Framework 

(c) Pursue major 
improvements to the 
strategic road network 

! Henlys Corner (interim) improvement scheme (TfL 
current) 

! Major junction improvements at M1/A5/A406, Staples 
Corner and A406/A41 through Brent Cross 
Cricklewood (BXC) development 

22



48

LIP Objectives Means of Delivery 
! Edgware Road (A5) Corridor Study and A5 junction 

improvements through BXC, West Hendon, Colindale 
and Edgware developments, and secured from other 
funding. 

! Continue to lobby for future improvements to 
A406/Golders Green Junction and long term major 
improvement on A406 at Henlys Corner. 

! Develop proposals and continue to seek 
improvements to address other future infrastructure 
delivery requirements to support growth in the 
borough including at the A41/ Hendon Central 
junction and A1000 / Whetstone Town Centre 
crossroad. 

(d) Town centre 
enhancement to improve the 
public realm, public transport 
services, short-trip making 
by walking, parking and 
servicing controls and 
accessibility improvements 

! Improvements to key interchanges and public realm 
within town centres delivered through town centre 
frameworks and local improvement programmes. 

! Interim improvements delivered through corridor and 
neighbourhood based proposals 

! Proposals developed through Mayors Outer London 
Fund, Major Schemes and/or Mayor’s Great Spaces, 

! Air quality improvement project at North Finchley 

(4) More environmentally friendly 
transport networks

(a) Support the use of low 
emission vehicles including 
electric cars 

! Incorporation of electric vehicle charging points within 
developments and consider future roll out in car-parks 
and on street 

! Continue to facilitate at-home charging of electric 
vehicles by arrangements to permit and manage 
parking on small forecourts. 

(b) Encourage mixed use 
development that will help to 
reduce the distances people 
need to travel 

! Encouraging mixed use development that will help to 
reduce the distances people need to travel 

! Pedestrian and cycle networks in and serving major 
development areas 

! Travel Plan monitoring and support 

(c) Making cycling and 
walking more attractive for 
leisure, health and short trips 

! Development of area frameworks through the All 
London Green Grid incorporating proposals for off-
road walking and cycling routes and other links 

! Off road and quiet road cycle route improvements 

! Pedestrian and cycle networks in and serving major 
development areas 

! Major improvements associated with development 
areas and strategic roads reducing barriers for 
pedestrians and cyclists (particularly at BXC and 
through the Henlys Corner improvement scheme) 

! Development of cycling strategy and programme of 
improvements to support Mayors Cycling Vision. 

Development area and Town Centre plans 

The various major developments are or will be supported by Area Action Plans, 
development frameworks and planning and highway conditions, agreements and 
delivery plans that will result in comprehensive transport facilities in these areas for 
public and private transport, cycling and walking to meet the needs of existing and 
future residents.  

23



49

Colindale Area Action Plan (CAAP) area 
Improved transport and access is a cornerstone of the CAAP, including the 
delivery of a new public piazza and improved transport interchange at 
Colindale tube station in partnership with key stakeholders including TfL, bus 
service improvements, a new network of cycle and pedestrian routes and 
supporting travel plan measures and incentives to help residents to make 
best use of the available travel options. 

Recent delivery actions and actions expected in 2013/14 – 2016/17 that will 
deliver transport and urban realm improvements to support the development 
are:
o Creation of a new Station Square – Colindale station Piazza and transport 

interchange, as well as improvements to the tube station including (later in 
the development) step free access. The new Piazza is now complete.

o A second new square in Grahame Park at the southern end of the re-
aligned Lanacre Avenue as part of phase 1 of the Grahame Park estate 
regeneration, which is due to start construction during 2013/14. 

o New and improved bus stops, including outside the tube station which has 
now been completed, and a new bus route (Colindale – Finchley Central, 
or as otherwise agreed with TfL) 

o Improvements to local pedestrian and cycle routes to provide a network of 
safe routes and better connections with other key development and 
regeneration areas; 

o Junction Improvements at Watford Way (A41) / Aerodrome Road, 
Colindale Avenue / Edgware Road (A5), Montrose Avenue /Edgware 
Road, Grahame Park Way / Lanacre Avenue (including provision for the 
future diversion of Aerodrome Road to connect at this point, and removal 
of the associated roundabout at Colindale Avenue) and Bunns Lane / 
Grahame Park Way; all including appropriate pedestrian crossing 
facilities; 

o Colindale Avenue Improvements including the replacement of the existing 
zebra crossing by the tube station with a pelican crossing which will help 
address existing congestion and promote smoother traffic flows. The 
pelican crossing has now been completed and work is ongoing to 
consider the delivery of further transport improvements and an enhanced 
public realm along Colindale Avenue in conjunction with upcoming 
developments of the Peel Centre and former British Newspaper Lending 
Library sites 

o Travel Plan related initiatives such as subsidised Oyster cards, cycle 
purchase discounts, car clubs and free cycle maintenance. 

o Significant investment in improved public realm on street and footpath / 
cycle linkages through local parks to stitch together the new development 
and deliver improved connectivity, reduce vehicular travel and encourage 
healthier lifestyles. 

Cricklewood, Brent Cross and West Hendon Development Framework 

Brent Cross Cricklewood  
Transport investment includes plans for a new fully accessible Thameslink 
railway station and public transport interchange on the Midland Mainline, as 
well as accessibility and interchange improvements at Cricklewood 
(Thameslink) and Brent Cross (Northern Line) stations. 
It also includes a new bus station at the shopping centre, a ‘rapid transit’ bus 
service linking the key public transport interchanges and some 21 bus service 
enhancements (new, extended and diverted services as well as those with 

24



50

capacity and frequency improvements), subject to detailed discussions with 
TfL and other authorities. Bus priority lanes and bus only streets are also 
proposed, together with new and improved bus stops and a comprehensive 
network of facilities for pedestrians and cyclists within the application area. 

A network of new roads will be provided including a new link to the A5 over 
the Midland Mainline improving accessibility to and from the west, remodelled 
major road junctions including facilities for buses, pedestrians and cyclists as 
appropriate. A further study of pedestrian and cycle links from the 
development to connect with adjacent communities has been scoped and a 
comprehensive corridor study looking at all modes of transport along the A5 
and its environs is underway. 

A section 73 application proposing a re-configured Brent Cross Shopping 
Centre and a new non-vehicular ‘Living’ bridge is due to be considered by the 
Council’s Planning & Environment Committee by the end of the year. The 
Council is also working towards the appointment of a new development 
partner for the southern area. Development north of the A406, but also 
including infrastructure to facilitate the southern build-out, is expected to 
commence around 2016. 

West Hendon Regeneration 
The first phases have commenced on site, with the recent completion of 
phase 2A ‘Lakeside’. Following a review of the Masterplan, a new outline 
scheme was approved in July for some 1,500 new units (net increase) which 
includes the provision of a lower residential parking ratio, traffic management 
measures to reduce local rat-running and an A5 upgrade including better 
facilities for pedestrians. The existing Perryfield Way gyratory system will be 
removed, congestion will be addressed and although the bus lanes are 
proposed to be removed, overall traffic flow is predicted to be smoother, 
including for buses. The recent approval also includes the detail for the next 
phase of 358 units which will be progressed during 2014. 

Phases 3A/B/C of the scheme are due to be implemented in the years leading 
up to 2017, and will include interim transport improvements which are subject 
to reserved matters applications, upgrading the pedestrian route to Hendon 
(Thameslink) station is a key priority.  A new pedestrian and cycle bridge 
alongside the existing road bridge on Cool Oak Lane is also planned to be 
delivered as part of phase 3 to ensure pedestrian safety in crossing the bridge 
to access green spaces around the Welsh Harp Reservoir. 

Dollis Valley priority estate 
This scheme for 616 new homes was approved by the Council’s Planning & 
Environment Committee in June 2013 and includes improvements to the local 
bus service (route 326) with new bus stops and better penetration of the 
estate helping to increase the site Public Transport Accessibility Level. Local 
pedestrian improvements, including enhancements to the Dollis Valley Green 
Walk for pedestrians and cyclists, better access to and from the estate and a 
travel plan and travel plan incentives are also planned. 

Mill Hill East - Mill Hill Area Action Plan area 
A series of public transport improvements have been identified in liaison with 
TfL to improve the Public Transport Accessibility Level of the area, which 
include creation of a new east-west distributor road through the development 
facilitating bus service extensions and diversions and new and improved bus 

25



51

stopping, layover and turning facilities. Urban realm improvements, new 
pedestrian and cycle routes and facilities, travel plan supporting measures 
and incentives, a car club and various other transport mitigation measures 
and improvements in the surrounding area are also planned. 

Delivery actions ongoing and expected in 2013/14 – 2016/17 that will deliver 
transport and urban realm improvements to support the development are:
o Strategic East-West distributor road and cycle link through the AAP site 

including new bus stops and providing for the extension of the 382 bus 
service to improve public transport accessibility (Diversion of the 240 bus 
service later in the development will also be facilitated by the distributor 
road and a new north – south route, including a bus-only street to allow a 
direct connection to the tube station); 

o Improvements to various key junctions including the east-west distributor 
road with Bittacy Hill and Frith Lane, Holders Hill Circus and Frith Lane / 
Bittacy Hill and the highway link in between, and the junctions at both 
ends of Engel Park with Pursley Road and Bittacy Hill. The east-west 
road/Frith Lane and Engel Park/Bittacy Hill junctions have been 
completed. All junction improvements include or will include appropriate 
safe pedestrian crossing facilities; 

o Improved tube station forecourt including public realm improvements, 
cycle parking facilities and better bus stopping arrangements, together 
with (subject to viability) plans for step free access provision at the station 
later in the development; 

o Various traffic management measures on local roads to promote 
smoother flows of traffic, and a review of parking controls to prevent any 
overspill parking; 

o Improvements to local bus stops and pedestrian and cycle routes, 
including the east-west cycle route referred to above providing a 
connection between Pursley Road and Finchley via a largely off-road 
connections via Sanders Lane, alongside the east-west distributor road 
and then via Lovers Walk. 

Stonegrove priority estate 
This estate regeneration scheme received outline planning permission for 937 
new homes in 2008 and involves intensified use of the site together with 
various highway improvements including the creation of a new access point 
on the A5 to better distribute estate traffic and reduce pressure on the A41 
and Canons Corner (A5/A410) junctions. Bus stop improvements and better 
facilities for pedestrians are also delivered or planned. The penultimate 
reserved matters application was approved in April, and included provision for 
the installation of electric vehicle charging points. 

Town Centre proposals are being pursued through town centre planning 
frameworks. Complementary applications for improvements have been and 
continue to be pursued. 

North Finchley is Barnet’s third largest district centre. The centre is focused 
along the High Road A1000 and is essentially linear in form. The centre has 
a variety of independent and well known chains and is generally vibrant – 
serving a large local catchment population. North Finchley is also home to 
the Arts Depot which, as a high quality performing and visual arts centre is a 
key strategic, cultural and leisure facility in the borough. 

With the support of the Mayor's Outer London Fund progress on improving 

26



52

North Finchley is now being made by the Council and the North Finchley 
Town Team which was established in April 2013. The Fund will be partly 
used to establish a "Cultural Quarter" in the southern end of the town centre 
around the artsdepot and Tally Ho Corner providing for a range of 
community activities. New signage, lighting and landscaping including tree 
planting and decluttering are proposed as well as enchancements to 
buildings and shopfronts. 

Improvements to are also planned through the North Finchley Cleaner Air 
Project. North Finchley is at the junction of four main roads and has been 
identified as an air quality focus area. Recent traffic counts indicate 30,000 
vehicles AADT and there is a large bus station on the junction with six bus 
routes serving it.  There is a large ten-storey apartment block on the junction 
and it is in the middle of a residential area with approximately 15,000 
residents.  An automatic monitoring station is in place measuring NO2 and 
PM10: the annual mean concentration for NO2 was 63ug/m3 in 2012. 

The North Finchley Cleaner Air Project, funded mainly from the Mayor’s Air 
Quality Fund and LIP funding aims to provide, green infrastructure, electric 
vehicle charging and additional cycle parking/facilities and environmental 
education and campaigning initiatives. 

The Outer London fund scheme also includes re-examining traffic 
movements around Tally Ho corner and the Arts Depot and Bus Station with 
a view to a developing a remodelled road layout reducing the dominance of 
motor traffic and transform the space for pedestrians and cyclists, for future 
implementation 

Chipping Barnet. The Town Centre Strategy for Chipping Barnet was 
adopted in June 2013. The Strategy provides a framework to protect what is 
best about Chipping Barnet, setting parameters for high quality expansion of 
the town centre. It helps to guide and manage future development and 
change, promote improvements to ensure the town centre's long term vitality 
and viability and is a material planning consideration in the determination of 
future planning applications within the town centre. 

The strategy includes for looking at options to provide the best flow of 
traffic, safety and ease of movement for pedestrians, and improved 
environmental quality and progressing improvements to the Wood 
Street/High Street junction and the setting of St John the Baptist Church and 
its relationship with the new Barnet and Southgate College building and 
public space fronting Wood Street. 

A review of previous options for the Wood Street junction and examining 
options to ease congestion on the High Street south of the junction are 
included in the programme of investment. 

Finchley Church End is one of Barnet’s 14 district centres and one of the 
most visited in the borough. It has a large and relatively affluent local 
catchment population who live within walking or cycling distance of the town 
centre. It is the most popular ‘top-up’ food destination in the borough but this 
is not fully reflected in the quality of the physical environment of the town 
centre. 

27



53

The town centre is served by Finchley Central tube station on the Northern 
Line and a large number of bus routes, making it highly accessible from a 
wide area of central and north London. However, the location of the railway 
cuts the town centre in half and creates a disconnect between the northern 
and southern ends of the town centre exacerbated by the major junction of 
Ballards Lane and Nether Street which is heavily trafficked and creates a 
poor quality environment. 

Plans for the area focus on opportunities to improve the connection between 
the northern and southern halves of the town centre in the longer term and 
options to improve the pedestrian environment making the centre easy to 
access and move around for all users, while protecting the historic fabric, 
with the overall aim of improving the quality of the town centre environment 
for all. 

Feasibility work is being planned to look at a pedestrian bridge and an 
improved junction at Nether Street / Ballards Lane / Chaville Way, potentially 
in conjunction with any development proposals that TfL may wish to pursue 
in the vicinity of the tube station. 

Edgware is Barnet’s only major town centre and the new Development 
Framework was approved by the Council in June. The town centre has 
excellent integrated public transport services and facilities with the Northern 
Line tube and bus stations in close juxtaposition in the heart of the town 
centre, and right next to the Broadwalk shopping centre. There are 
opportunities to redevelop and expand the shopping centre in the next few 
years, and in the longer term to include other adjacent sites. Opportunities to 
introduce complementary improvements to the public transport facilities, 
particularly to deliver an improved bus station, are being actively explored 
with TfL and dialogue with the shopping centre developers is ongoing with 
regard to seeking improvements to the main shopping street, Station Road. 

Sub-regional Transport Plans

Other committed and planned projects identified in the sub-regional Transport Plan 
that support LIP objectives (funded from the TfL business plan and elsewhere) 
include: 

Scheme Detail LIP objectives addressed 
London Overground 
capacity increase

An extra carriage on all London 
Overground lines (except Barking-Gospel 
Oak line), from 2014 completed by 2016, 
giving 25 per cent capacity increase. 

Public transport 
enhancements (with 
partners)

Thameslink upgrade Thameslink upgrade to provide longer 
trains and higher frequencies on 
Midland Mainline and Great Northern 
routes, 2018. 

Public transport 
enhancements (with 
partners)

Northern line upgrades Northern line upgrades, to increase 
capacity by a fifth and reduce journey 
times by 18 per cent, due for 
completion by 2014 and 2020 

Public transport 
enhancements (with 
partners)

M25 Junctions 23-27  Hard shoulder running on junctions 
23 – 27 of M25 due for completion by 

Reduce congestion 
Pursue major improvements 

28



54

2015. to the strategic road network

North London future 
opportunities / North 
sub-region priority work 
area

Promotion of public transport in north 
London, highlighting the opportunities 
provided by existing orbital bus routes 
and their connections with rail and 
Tube services / Enhancements at key 
radial/ orbital rail or bus interchanges  

Building on the issues identified in the 
key interchange audit in order to 
develop a programme of 
improvements. 

Public transport 
enhancements (with 
partners) 
Improve the bus network 
(with TfL)

North sub-region 
priority work area

Responding to the findings and 
recommendations made by the 
Roads Task Force and the issues set 
out in the corridor studies.  

Reduce congestion 
Pursue major improvements 
to the strategic road network

North sub-region 
priority work area

Taking forward the recommendations 
made in the north London cycling 
strategy and developing schemes in 
order to drive growth in cycling in the 
sub-region. 

Making cycling and walking 
more attractive for leisure, 
health and short trips

Other London-wide 
projects  

Wi-Fi provision at underground stations  
Pedestrian countdown at traffic signals  
Step-free access programme  
Contactless ticketing on all modes  
SCOOT roll out  
Introduction of electric vehicle charging 
points  
New bus for London  
Legible London expansion  
Investment in strategic and local roads  
Implementing the Mayor’s Vision for 
Cycling in London

various

Roads Task Force 

The programme of investment includes for taking forward recommendations of the 
Roads Task Force report, in the first instance by applying the roads task force 
typology to roads in the borough and identify the gaps between aspiration and 
existing conditions, and developing proposals to address these gaps. 

As a rule a Roads Task Force typology has not been identified in relation to 
proposals in the proforma A accompanying this plan, in part because it would pre-
empt a considered evaluation and in part because many work packages are 
programmes of work across many roads with potentially different typologies, or over 
an area including more than one typology. 

Road Safety 

The London-wide target for KSI casualty reduction in London included within Safe 
Streets for London: The Road Safety Action Plan for London 2020 is for a 40% 
reduction in KSI casualties by 2020 compared with the 2005-09 average. This is 
more stretching than the equivalent borough long-term target included in the LIP 
(33% reduction by 2020 against the 2004-08 average). As identified in the guidance 
the borough is not updating the long term target at this time. Nevertheless increased 
investment in this area is included within the programme of investment. 

29



55

Cycling 

Barnet is committed to delivering a step change in the way it caters for the cyclist, 
making it better and safer to travel by bicycle in the borough and in doing so 
improving the health and well-being of its residents. 

Increased cycling is critical to accommodating the increased growth planned for the 
borough and ensuring sustainable travel movement in the future. Existing plans for a 
number of key regeneration areas in Barnet provide for new and significantly 
improved cycle facilities in these areas. 

The additional funding supporting the Mayors Cycle Vision provides an opportunity 
for the borough to develop a cycling strategy, building on the ideas generated 
through the recent mini-Holland application, to provide a framework and resources to 
effectively deliver a step-change in cycling provision and take up in the borough. 

The borough has made improvements for off-road cycling in recent years, including 
in the Dollis Valley that runs through the centre of the borough using LIP and Mayoral 
Parks funding. This has improved and provided new off-road sections of route that 
can be used by cyclists. Improvements have also been made to other off-road routes 
in Hendon, Brunswick Park and Mill Hill and signed quiet road routes are now being 
developed.

Schools are supported through our school travel planning team to deliver cycle 
training, cycle clubs and new cycle facilities, to promote the health and environmental 
benefits of cycling and to encourage cycling to school and for other purposes. New 
cycle stands have been installed at a number of on-street locations recently and this 
year for the first time the borough is partnering British Cycling to deliver a series of 
SkyRide local events in the borough. 

The programme of investment envisages building on these existing developer and 
LIP funded, activities and incorporates new and additional work through the Borough 
Cycle Programme, Cycle Superhighways and Quietways programmes in particular. 

Bus Stop Accessibility 

Some 49% of bus stops in Barnet are currently assessed as meeting TfL’s criteria for 
an accessible bus stop (compared with 70% Londonwide). The investment 
programme includes proposals for increasing this to around 70% of stops. This is still 
some way below the Mayor’s Londonwide aspiration of achieving 95% of bus stops 
accessible by 2016, but takes no account of the additional dedicated resources from 
TfL.

Funding

Anticipated funding available to deliver proposals in the 3 year delivery plan period 
2014/15 – 2016/17 is shown below 

Table 2 - funding sources

 Anticipated funding by year £k 

Funding
source

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 Total 

LIP allocation* 4,735 4,623 4,770 14,128

Cycling
Programme
Funding 

315 350 359 1,024

Colindale 1,385 TBC TBC 1,385

30



56

Infrastructure 
Improvements** 

Other
developer
funding *** 

100 100 170 370

Council
revenue

434 434 434 1,302

Council capital 3,000 3,000 3,000 9,000

Total 9,869 8,507 8,733 27,209 

* Anticipated funding at borough level for Corridors, Neighbourhoods and Supporting 
Measures, Principal Road Maintenance and Local Transport Funding Programmes 

** GAF + s106  
*** Plus additional funding TBC (see table 4) 

Risk and Prioritisation 

Funding sources included within the programme of investment can only be indicative.  
Developer funding in particular will be subject to the economic climate and progress 
of the relevant developments.  The proposed Council funding shown in the 
Programme of Investment reflects the Council’s budget plans at March 2013 and 
may be subject to change. 

The delivery plan aims to address the boroughs transport objectives giving priority to: 

! developing the projects needed to support the level of growth within the 
borough through; 

o an improved understanding of the scale and impact of the demands 
on the transport network, 

o developing the infrastructure projects that will address these, and 
o developing complementary behaviour change programmes 

! responding to the Roads Task Force report 

! responding to the Mayors Cycle Vision 

! addressing bus stop accessibility needs 

! addressing road safety concerns 
Priority projects supporting growth are identified in appendix DP1 

Where funding is not available at the levels indicated in the delivery plan, 
implementation will be prioritised based on funding available from other sources, 
value for money in delivering outcomes, statutory requirements, and deliverability.. 

Delivery Plan risks 

Table 3 - Principal delivery risks 
Probability 1=rare, 2=Unlikely, 3=Possible, 4=Likely, 5=Almost certain 
Impact 1=Negligible, 2=Minor, 3=Moderate, 4=Major, 5=Catastrophic 
Risk rating (Probability x Impact) 1-3 = low, 4-6 = moderate, 8-12=high, 15-25 = extreme 

Risk Proba
bility 

Impact Risk 
Rating

Response / 
Mitigation 

Significant reduction 
in funding levels 
available from TfL, 
the Council’s own 
resources, or from 
third parties. 

3 4 HIGH Identify and pursue 
alternative funding 
sources for key 
proposals

Reprioritise and/or 

31



57

extend delivery 
programme 

Increases in 
programme or 
individual project cost 

3 3 HIGH Ensure effective 
monitoring and control 
of project costs. 
Reduce project scope, 
or extend delivery 
period if necessary to 
control costs. 
Reprioritise or 
substitute proposals if 
alternatives can deliver 
more effectively. 

Major development 
schemes do not 
proceed at pace 
envisaged 

3 3 HIGH Reschedule proposals 
- slower pace of 
development likely to 
reduce need for 
associated proposals. 
Consider reprioritising 
where this is not the 
case. 

Council is required to 
“implement” its LIP 
under s151 of the 
GLA Act without 
sufficient external 
funding support.

1 5 MOD-
ERATE 

Accept risk – keep 
under review. 

Individual proposals 
do not receive 
sufficient public 
support / member 
approval to proceed

3 3 HIGH Redesign to overcome 
objections. Substitute 
other proposals 
addressing similar 
objectives. 

Insufficient staff 
resources to plan and 
deliver the LIP 
programme

3 4 HIGH Engage short term 
project specific staff, 
reschedule work to 
deliver less staff 
intensive elements 

Projects and 
programmes do not 
deliver expected 
outputs and outcomes 

2 4 HIGH Review impact on 
overall delivery. 
Review programme 
and/or reprioritise 
other proposals to 
support delivery of 
required outcomes. 

Projects delayed by 
external or other 
factors

3 3 HIGH Re-programme and/or 
substitute other 
proposals addressing 
similar objectives. 

32



58

Programme of Investment 
Activities delivering the borough transport objectives over the period 2014/15 – 2016/17 are 
included in the programme of investment below. A number of these items will be provided through 
direct delivery obligations imposed on the developer as part of the relevant section 106 legal 
agreement. Further detail for integrated transport elements is included in the separate pro-forma A  

Table 4 - Programme of Investment

Programme areas Funding  
source 

Funding (£,000s) MTS goals 

L
IP

 o
b

je
c
ti

v
e

s
 

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 

 2
0

1
5

/1
6

 

2
0

1
6

/1
7

 

 T
o

ta
l 

 E
c
o

n
. 

d
e

v
t 

a
n

d
 p

o
p

 g
ro

w
th

 

 Q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 

 S
a

fe
ty

 a
n

d
 s

e
c
u

ri
ty

 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

 C
lim

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 

C
o

rr
id

o
rs

, 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 m
e
a
s
u

re
s

 

North Finchley Cleaner Air Project LIP allocation 80 80 0

320 ! !

1d
2
3d
4

Mayors Air Quality 
Fund 

80 80 0

Electric Vehicle Charge Points LIP allocation 50 50 50 150 "!" " "!"4a

Cycle training LIP allocation 100 100 100

481 ! !

2
4c

TfL Borough cycling 
programme 

56 58 67

Parking reviews - programme of 
parking reviews to address town centre 
parking issues, congestion and parking 
around transport hibs etc

LIP allocation 100 100 100 300 !"!" " !""1a
3d

Disabled parking provision LIP allocation 100 100 100 300 " " " !""1a
1d

20mph speed limits/VA signs 
Implement outcomes of 20mph zone/VA 
sign reviews 

LIP allocation 100 100 100 300 "!"!" " "1d
2a

Bus gate/width restriction review 
implement outcomes of bus gate/width 
restriction review

LIP allocation 50 50 50 150 !"!"! "1a
1d

Directional signage review 
Implement outcomes of directional 
signage review 

LIP allocation 50 50 50 150 !"!" 1a
1d

Cycle route signage review 
Implement outcomes of cycle route 
signage review 

LIP allocation 50 50 50 150 "!" 1d
4c

Traffic management and accident 
reduction (borough wide) Package of 
small scale traffic management and 
accident reduction schemes including 
traffic signal review.

LIP allocation 500 500 500 1500 !"!"!" " "1a
1d

Cycle routes 
Programme of cycle route provision to 
develop aspirations of mini-Holland 
expression of interest and other routes in 
borough

LIP allocation 400 400 400

1200

" !"!"!""1d
3
4cCycle 

Superhighways 
Quietways funding 

TBC 

TBC 

TBC 

TBC 

TBC 

TBC 

Cycle parking on street and other public 
places

LIP allocation 20 20 20 60 " !" " " "4c

TfL Borough cycling 
programme

20 20 20 60

Residential Cycle parking TfL Borough cycling 
programme 

100 100 100 300 " !" "4c

33



59

Programme areas Funding  
source 

Funding (£,000s) MTS goals 

L
IP

 o
b

je
c
ti

v
e

s
 

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 

 2
0

1
5

/1
6

 

2
0

1
6

/1
7

 

 T
o

ta
l 

 E
c
o

n
. 

d
e

v
t 

a
n

d
 p

o
p

 g
ro

w
th

 

 Q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 

 S
a

fe
ty

 a
n

d
 s

e
c
u

ri
ty

 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

 C
lim

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 

School Travel schemes, Various 
locations boroughwide 
Measure in neighbourhoods around 
school to support school travel plans, 
tackling school run traffic and parking

LIP allocation 500 500 500 1500 !"!" " " "1a
2a
2b
4c

Local access and accessibility 
improvements. Various locations 
boroughwide 
Improvements to repond to localised 
access and accessibility issues identified 
through year

LIP allocation 100 100 100 300 " " " !""1d
3d

Town Centre proposals 
         TC decluttering (other centres)

LIP allocation 50 50 50 150 " !" " " "1d
3d

Town Centre proposals 
         Chipping Barnet

LIP allocation 40 90 100 300 !"!"!"!""1
3d

Developer 70 " " " " "

Town Centre proposals 
·         Finchley Church End

LIP allocation 40 90 100 230 !"!"!"!""1
3d

Town Centre proposals 
·         Edgware Town Centre 
·         North Finchley Town Centre

Developer TBC TBC TBC TBC !"!"!"!"!"1
3d

LIP allocation 50 50

Development of proposals/TfL 
liaison/Monitoring etc 

LIP allocation 50 50 50 150 " " " " "

Bus stop accessibility improvements LIP allocation 100 100 100 300 !"" " !""1
3b
3d

Travel Planning – Staff and resources 
to support schools developing and 
implementing school travel plans and 
monitoring of development led plans 

LIP allocation 400 400 400
1500

!"!" " " "1a
2
3a
4b

Developer 100 100 100

Road safety Education, Training and 
Publicity 

LIP allocation 200 200 200 600 " !"!" " "1d
2
4c

Cycling/walking promotion LIP allocation 25 25 25 75 " !" " " "4c

Cycle grants to schools, Bike-it plus 
officer and Cycle to School 
Partnerships 

LIP allocation
TfL Borough cycling 
programme

0
70

0
105

0
105 280

" !" " " "2
4c

Support for cycling (cycle strategy and 
staffing)

TfL Borough cycling 
programme 

66 66 66

260

" !" " " "4c

LIP allocation 9 20 33

Roads Task Force Typology mapping 
exercise 

LIP allocation 65 50 115 !"!" " " "1
3c
3d

Borough transport modelling to 
support infrastructure delivery plan 
scheme development 

LIP allocation 100 100 100 300 !"!" " "!"3

CPC Safer Urban Driver training for 
borough fleet 

LIP allocation 1 1 1

8

" " !" " "1d

TfL Borough cycling 
programme 

3 1 1

Moving Traffic Enforcement Cameras 
and TMO / sign review

LIP allocation 200 200 !"!"!" " "1a
1d

Future regeneration priorities LIP Allocation 90 334 424 !" " " "!"3

Colindale Regeneration 
[2014/15] Junction Improvements 
Watford Way (A41) / Aerodrome Road 

GAF + s106 1,385 TBC TBC 1385 !" " " "!"3

34



60

Programme areas Funding  
source 

Funding (£,000s) MTS goals 

L
IP

 o
b

je
c
ti

v
e

s
 

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 

 2
0

1
5

/1
6

 

2
0

1
6

/1
7

 

 T
o

ta
l 

 E
c
o

n
. 

d
e

v
t 

a
n

d
 p

o
p

 g
ro

w
th

 

 Q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 

 S
a

fe
ty

 a
n

d
 s

e
c
u

ri
ty

 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

 C
lim

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 

Junction Improvements Colindale 
Avenue / Edgware Road (A5) (& A5 
Montrose Ave) 
[Other Works TBC]  
Pedestrian Improvements Aerodrome 
Road/Colindale Ave

Brent Cross Cricklewood Developer TBC TBC TBC TBC !" " " "!"3

West Hendon LIP Major schemes TBC TBC TBC TBC !" " " "!"3

Developer TBC TBC TBC TBC 

Stonegrove Developer TBC TBC TBC TBC !" " " "!"3

Mill Hill East  Developer TBC TBC TBC TBC !" " " "!"3

M
a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 

Principal Road renewal - prioritised 
locations

LIP allocation 1,105 1,057 1,057 3,219 !" " " " "1b

Bridge assessment and strengthening
- Prioritised locations

LIP allocation tbc tbc tbc tbc !" " " " "1b

Borough Road carriageway and 
footway improvements and planned 
maintenance (LTF + borough) 

LIP allocation 100 100 100 300 ! " " " "1b

Council capital/ 
borrowing*

3,000 3,000 3,000 9,000

Borough Road responsive 
maintenance 

Council revenue* 434 434 434 1,302 ! " " " "1b

Maintenance total 4,639 4,591 4,591 13,821

* The proposed Council funding reflects the Council’s budget plans at March 2013. Following approval the budgets may be subject to in-
year changes..

Integrated transport total 5,410 3,995 4,141 13,546

35



61

Supporting the Mayor’s High Profile Outputs 
This section provides supporting information on how the LIP proposals will help to 
deliver the Mayor of London’s identified high profile outputs: 

Cycle Superhighway schemes 
Current plans for Cycle Superhighways include route CS11 from Marylebone via the 
A41 to the south of the borough and CS12 from Angel to Highgate just south  
of the borough. 

An extension from CS11 to Edgware and links to BXC, and extensions from both 
CS11 and CS12 into the borough formed part of the borough’s expression of interest 
for the Mayor’s mini-Holland initiative. Development of these or other high quality 
routes into the borough as part of the Cycle-Superhighways or Quietways 
programmes of work is expected over this delivery plan period. 

Cycle parking 
Suitable cycle parking, generally in accordance with London Plan standards, will 
continue to be incorporated into all new developments. Residential cycle parking 
provision in estates managed by Barnet Homes is also planned through TfL’s 
borough cycle programme funding. 

Provision of stands on-street and in other public places will also be provided through 
town centre improvements and a rolling programme of provision to cater for unmet 
demand.

Provision of cycle parking or improved provision will continue to be encouraged at 
schools, with training to help ensure this can be used. 

Table 5 -Anticipated delivery of cycle parking* 

 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 

On street or other public place    

Short stay spaces on 
street 

50 50 50 

Other public provision 10 10 10 

Off street    

School cycle parking 
programme 

50 50 50 

At home (inc new 
developments) 

>500 >500 >500 

Electric vehicle charging points 
The borough is currently investigating demand for charge points in Barnet to inform a 
future decision about the type and locations of charge points to introduce in Barnet. 

The borough also continues to: 

! Encourage or require provision for electric vehicles in new developments in 
line with the London Plan 

! Require no minimum depth of forecourt when providing a vehicle crossover, 
(a legal agreement is required that the vehicle will not overhang which 
becomes a local land charge transferring the requirement to future owners of 
the property) making it easier for owners of electric vehicles (which are often 
smaller vehicles) to get their vehicle off the road to charge it. 

36



62

Better Streets 
De-cluttering of streets forms an integral part of many proposals. Street layouts and 
public realm improvements in regeneration and development areas and town centres 
will be developed to minimise street clutter and there is scope to incorporate Better 
Streets principals in the design of these areas. 

Cleaner local authority fleets 
The council plans commence with a £7m capital investment to replace the 38 refuse 
and recycling fleet with euro 5 engines, which are the most fuel efficient and 
environmentally friendly vehicles at this time. The council is following this with a 
£3/4m replacement programme of the existing mechanical sweeper fleet in early 
2014, these will be fitted with euro 6 engines. The remaining fleet comprises of 
primarily minibuses and light vans/tippers that have either Euro 4 or 5 engines, these 
vehicles will be reviewed in next years fleet renewal.   

The Council’s fuel procurement is achieved via the Government  Procurement 
Service (GPS) approved contractors. Committed to a cleaner and greener suburb, 
we use a 5% bio diesel mix for fuel used in the council fleet . Also the council's fleet 
procurement with maintenance services contract requires the approved contractor to 
generate innovation, regarding alternative fuels and alternative fueled vehicles 
sourced by the contractor. 

Street trees 
There are some 31,000 street trees in Barnet. All trees receive a regular health check 
and are pruned on a cyclical programme. Each tree is recorded on the council’s tree 
management database listing, among other things, location, species, size and 
condition. 

In 2013/14 we expect to plant around 60 new town centre trees – 26 through the 
Mayor’s street tree programme and others in conjunction with OLF and other town 
centre projects. The borough sustainably manages its stock to achieve at least 
replacement for trees lost. The delivery of major regeneration schemes and 
continued provision in conjunction with town centre projects is expected to continue 
to provide additional planting. 

37



6
3

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 D

P
1

 –
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 g

ro
w

th
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 

N
a

m
e
 /

 
L
o
c
a
ti
o
n

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

Is
s
u
e
 A

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 /

 B
e
n
e
fi
ts

 U
n
lo

c
k
e
d

F
u
n
d
in

g
R

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t

D
e
liv

e
ry

T
im

e
s
c
a

le
A

p
r 

2
0
1
3
 

P
o
s
it
io

n

C
O

L
IN

D
A

L
E

 
G

ro
w

th
 a

re
a
 s

p
a
n
n
in

g
 t

h
e
 L

B
 B

a
rn

e
t 

a
n
d
 L

B
 B

re
n
t 
b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 1

2
,5

0
0
 h

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 1

,0
0
0
 j
o
b
s
. 

T
o
 d

a
te

 2
5
%

 o
f 

n
e
w

 h
o
m

e
s
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 n

e
w

 c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
fl
o
o
r 

s
p
a
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 B

e
a
u
fo

rt
 

P
a
rk

. 
 S

ta
g
e
 1

 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

s
 m

it
ig

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

3
0
%

 o
f 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 u
p
 t

o
 7

0
0
0
 n

e
w

 h
o
m

e
s
 (

i.
e
. 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

d
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 2

0
2
0
).

 

A
5
 E

d
g
w

a
re

 
R

o
a
d
 /

 
M

o
n

tr
o

s
e

A
v
e
n
u
e

(S
ta

g
e
 1

) 

J
u
n
c
ti
o
n

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

p
ro

v
id

in
g

s
ig

n
a
lis

e
d

la
y
o
u
t 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

Id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 C

o
lin

d
a
le

 A
re

a
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 P
la

n
 a

s
 C

ri
ti
c
a
l 
to

 
p
re

v
e
n
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

o
n
g
e
s
ti
o
n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 i
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 

N
e

e
d

e
d

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
ir
s
t 

3
0

0
0

 h
o

m
e

s
 (

a
lm

o
s
t 

c
o

m
p
le

te
) 

£
1

,0
5

3
,0

0
0

 
2

0
1

1
-1

5
 

O
u

tl
in

e
 

d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 
e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
c
o
m

p
le

te

A
5
 E

d
g
w

a
re

 
R

o
a
d
 /

 
C

o
lin

d
a

le
 

A
v
e
n
u
e

(S
ta

g
e
 1

) 

J
u
n
c
ti
o
n

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
.

A
 k

e
y
 g

a
te

w
a
y
 i
n
to

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 C

o
lin

d
a

le
 A

re
a
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 I

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 P
la

n
 a

s
 

C
ri
ti
c
a
l 
to

 p
re

v
e
n
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

o
n
g
e
s
ti
o
n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 

a
re

a
 i
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 

N
e

e
d

e
d
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

ir
s
t 

3
0

0
0

 h
o

m
e

s
 (

a
lm

o
s
t 

c
o

m
p
le

te
)

£
1
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
 

2
0
1
1
-1

5
 

F
e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 
s
tu

d
y

c
o
m

p
le

te

B
u

n
n

s
 L

a
n

e
 /

 
G

ra
h

a
m

e
P

a
rk

 W
a

y
 

(S
ta

g
e
 1

) 

J
u
n
c
ti
o
n

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l

Id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 C

o
lin

d
a
le

 A
re

a
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 P
la

n
 a

s
 C

ri
ti
c
a
l 
to

 
p
re

v
e
n
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

o
n
g
e
s
ti
o
n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 i
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 

N
e
e
d
e
d
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ir
s
t 

3
0
0
0
 

£
1

,1
0

0
,0

0
0

 
2

0
1

1
-1

5
 

O
u

tl
in

e
 

d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 
e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
c
o
m

p
le

te

38



6
4

N
a

m
e
 /

 
L
o
c
a
ti
o
n

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

Is
s
u
e
 A

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 /

 B
e
n
e
fi
ts

 U
n
lo

c
k
e
d

F
u
n
d
in

g
R

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t

D
e
liv

e
ry

T
im

e
s
c
a

le
A

p
r 

2
0
1
3
 

P
o
s
it
io

n

 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
. 

h
o

m
e
s
 (

a
lm

o
s
t 

c
o

m
p
le

te
) 

A
5
 E

d
q
w

a
re

 
R

o
a
d
 /

 
A

5
1
0
9

D
e
a
n
s
b
ro

o
k

R
d

 
(W

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
: 

P
re

 2
0
1
6
 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t)

J
u
n
c
ti
o
n

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 n

e
e
d
s
 

to
 b

e
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 

to
 p

re
v
e

n
t 

b
o
tt
le

n
e
c
k
 o

n
 

A
5

 f
ro

m
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
. 

T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 p
la

n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

m
a
jo

r 
w

o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

t 
th

is
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 c

a
te

r 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 d
e
m

a
n
d
 g

iv
e
n
 

th
e
 s

c
a
le

 o
f 

g
ro

w
th

 a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 w

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
d
 m

o
re

 g
e
n
e
ra

lly
 i
n
 B

a
rn

e
t.

C
ri
ti
c
a
l 
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

lie
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
: 

E
d
g
w

a
re

 
T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 (

5
0
0
 u

n
it
s
 +

 1
9
,0

0
0
 s

q
m

 r
e
ta

il)
 

a
n
d

C
o
lin

d
a
le

 G
ro

w
th

 A
re

a
 (

1
0
,0

0
0
 u

n
it
s
 +

 1
0
0
0
 

jo
b
s
)

£
3
,5

0
0
,0

0
0

2
0
1
1
-1

5
 

F
e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 
a
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
c
o

n
s
tr

a
in

ts
a
n
d

d
e
liv

e
ra

b
ili

ty
 

is
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 

fr
o

m
 L

IP
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 i
n
 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
.

A
e
ro

d
ro

m
e

R
o
a
d
 /

 
C

o
lin

d
a

le
 

A
v
e
n
u
e
 /

 
L
a
n
a
c
re

A
v
e
n
u
e
 /

 
G

ra
h

a
m

e
P

a
rk

 W
a

y
 

(S
ta

g
e
 2

) 

R
o
a
d

re
a

lig
n

m
e

n
t

a
n
d
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

T
h
e
 k

e
y
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 C

o
lin

d
a
le

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 

C
o
lin

d
a
le

 A
re

a
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 I

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 P
la

n
 a

s
 C

ri
ti
c
a
l 
to

 p
re

v
e
n
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

c
o
n
g
e
s
ti
o
n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 i
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 

N
e
e
d
e
d
 

to
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ir
s
t 

7
0
0
0
 h

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 e

n
a
b
le

 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

lo
c
a
l 
h
ig

h
 s

tr
e
e
t 

lin
k
in

g
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 

£
4
,5

0
0
,0

0
0
 

2
0
1
6
-2

0
2
0

F
e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 
s
tu

d
y
 a

n
d
 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
c
o
m

p
le

te

C
o
lin

d
a

le
 

A
v
e
n
u
e

p
u

b
lic

 r
e

a
lm

 

R
o
a
d

re
a

lig
n

m
e

n
t,

fo
o
tp

a
th

T
h
e
 k

e
y
 s

tr
e
tc

h
 o

f 
ro

a
d
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 a

 l
o
c
a
l 
h
ig

h
 

s
tr

e
e
t 

lin
k
in

g
 t

u
b
e
 s

ta
ti
o
n
 t

o
 R

A
F

 M
u
s
e
u
m

 a
n
d
 

n
e
w

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 p

u
b
lic

 s
q
u
a
re

s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

£
4
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
 

2
0
1
6
-2

0
2
0

F
e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 
s
tu

d
y
 a

n
d
 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

s

39



6
5

N
a

m
e
 /

 
L
o
c
a
ti
o
n

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

Is
s
u
e
 A

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 /

 B
e
n
e
fi
ts

 U
n
lo

c
k
e
d

F
u
n
d
in

g
R

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t

D
e
liv

e
ry

T
im

e
s
c
a

le
A

p
r 

2
0
1
3
 

P
o
s
it
io

n

(S
ta

g
e
 2

)
w

id
e
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 

n
e
w

 c
y
c
le

 
la

n
e
s
  

in
 C

o
lin

d
a

le
 A

re
a
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 I

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 P
la

n
 a

s
 C

ri
ti
c
a
l 
to

 t
h
e
 a

re
a
. 

N
e
e
d
e

d
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ir
s
t 

7
0
0
0
 h

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 e

n
a
b
le

 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

lo
c
a
l 
h
ig

h
 s

tr
e
e
t 

lin
k
in

g
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

c
o
m

p
le

te

P
e
e
l 
C

e
n
tr

e
 

L
in

k
 R

o
a
d
 

(c
o

n
n

e
c
ti
n

g
A

e
ro

d
ro

m
e

R
o
a
d
 w

it
h
 

C
o
lin

d
e
e
p

L
a
n
e
) 

U
p
g
ra

d
in

g
 a

 
p
ri
v
a
te

 l
in

k
 

b
e
n
e
a
th

 t
h
e
 

N
o
rt

h
e
rn

 L
in

e
 

to
 f

o
rm

 a
 s

in
g
le

 
c
a
rr

ia
g
e
w

a
y

ro
a
d
 w

it
h
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

p
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

s
a
n
d
 c

y
c
lis

ts
 

T
h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a

l 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
/f

ro
m

 
th

e
 M

O
P

A
C

 P
e
e
l 
C

e
n

tr
e
 s

it
e
 f

a
c
ili

ta
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 

g
ro

w
th

 e
n
v
is

a
g
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
lin

d
a
le

 A
re

a
 A

c
ti
o
n
 

P
la

n
 a

n
d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 a
llo

w
in

g
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
g
ro

w
th

 
to

 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
.

T
B

C
 

T
B

C
 

B
e

in
g

 
a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d

40



6
6

N
a

m
e
 /

 
L
o
c
a
ti
o
n

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

Is
s
u
e
 A

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 /

 B
e
n
e
fi
ts

 U
n
lo

c
k
e
d

F
u
n
d
in

g
R

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t

D
e
liv

e
ry

T
im

e
s
c
a

le
A

p
r 

2
0
1
3
 

P
o
s
it
io

n

B
re

n
t 

C
ro

s
s
 

C
ri

c
k
le

w
o

o
d

 
G

ro
w

th
 A

re
a
 s

p
a
n
n
in

g
 t

h
e
 N

o
rt

h
 C

ir
c
u
la

r 
R

o
a
d
 i
n
 L

B
 B

a
rn

e
t 

n
e
a
r 

to
 t

h
e
 L

B
 B

re
n
t 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 d
e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 7

,5
0
0
 

h
o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 2

0
,0

0
0
 n

e
w

 j
o
b
s
 t

o
 c

o
n
n
e
c
t 

th
e
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r.

  
In

c
lu

d
e
s
 c

re
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
M

e
tr

o
p
o
lit

a
n
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
, 

M
1
 /

 A
4
0
6
 /

 A
5
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

s
, 

A
4
1
 /

 A
4
0
6
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

s
, 

N
e
w

 T
h
a
m

e
s
lin

k
 S

ta
ti
o
n
, 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 w
a
s
te

 f
a
c
ili

ty
, 

n
a
tu

ra
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

o
lli

s
 B

ro
o
k
 r

iv
e
r 

c
o
u
rs

e
 a

n
d
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
lly

 m
o
re

 p
h
y
s
ic

a
l,
 s

o
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 g

re
e
n
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

. 

T
o
 d

a
te

 a
ll 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 R

e
d
 L

in
e
 B

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 f

u
n
d
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
r,

 b
u
t 

s
it
ti
n
g
 j
u
s
t 

o
u
ts

id
e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 G

ro
w

th
 A

re
a
 a

re
 t

w
o
 m

a
jo

r 
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 p
ro

je
c
te

d
 t

o
 p

re
s
e

n
t 
m

a
jo

r 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 c

o
n

s
tr

a
in

ts
 o

n
c
e

 c
o

m
b

in
e

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
’s

 G
ro

w
th

 A
re

a
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 t

ra
ff
ic

 f
lo

w
s
. 

N
o
rt

h
C

ir
c
u
la

r
R

o
a
d
 /

 
G

o
ld

e
rs

G
re

e
n
 R

o
a
d
 

ju
n
c
ti
o
n

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

o
f 

c
u

t 
a

n
d

 
c
o

v
e

r 
m

a
jo

r 
s
c
h

e
m

e
.

F
e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 a
n
d
 

d
e
s
ig

n
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 

b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

u
s
in

g
 L

IP
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 i
n
 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
.

T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 p
la

n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

m
a
jo

r 
w

o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

t 
th

is
 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 c

a
te

r 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 d
e
m

a
n
d
 g

iv
e
n
 t

h
e
 

s
c
a
le

 o
f 

g
ro

w
th

 a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 w

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
d
 m

o
re

 g
e
n
e
ra

lly
 i
n
 B

a
rn

e
t.
 

T
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 “

in
h
e
ri
te

d
 s

c
h
e
m

e
” 

fo
r 

th
is

 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

w
h
ic

h
 l
a
n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

e
d
 w

a
s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 a

t 
£
6
0
M

 w
h
e
n
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 i
n

 2
0

0
4

. 
C

ri
ti
c
a
l 
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

lie
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
: 

H
e
n
le

y
s
 

C
o
rn

e
r 

(A
1
 /

 A
4
0
6
 /

 A
5
9
8
) 

a
n
d
 B

re
n
t 

C
ro

s
s
 

G
ro

w
th

 A
re

a
 (

7
,5

0
0
 u

n
it
s
 +

 2
0
,0

0
0
 j
o
b
s
)

£
6

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
2
0
1
1
-1

5
 

A
 f

e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 
s
tu

d
y
 t

o
 

a
s
s
e
s
s

w
h
e
th

e
r

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

m
ig

h
t 

b
e
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 

a
 s

m
a
lle

r 
s
c
a
le

s
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 

p
la

n
n
e
d

fr
o

m
 L

IP
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 i
n
 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

A
4
1
 /

 
F

e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 a
n
d
 

T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 p
la

n
 

£
1

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
2
0
1
1
-1

5
 

F
e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 

41



6
7

N
a

m
e
 /

 
L
o
c
a
ti
o
n

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

Is
s
u
e
 A

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 /

 B
e
n
e
fi
ts

 U
n
lo

c
k
e
d

F
u
n
d
in

g
R

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t

D
e
liv

e
ry

T
im

e
s
c
a

le
A

p
r 

2
0
1
3
 

P
o
s
it
io

n

Q
u
e
e
n
s

R
o
a
d

'H
e
n
d
o
n

Q
u
a
d
ra

n
t'

d
e
s
ig

n
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 

b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

u
s
in

g
 L

IP
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 i
n
 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
.

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

m
a
jo

r 
w

o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

t 
th

is
 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 c

a
te

r 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 d
e
m

a
n
d
 g

iv
e
n
 t

h
e
 

s
c
a
le

 o
f 

g
ro

w
th

 a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 w

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
d
 m

o
re

 g
e
n
e
ra

lly
 i
n
 B

a
rn

e
t.
 

A
 c

u
t 

a
n
d
 c

o
v
e
r 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t

o
 m

o
v
e
 

o
n
g
o
in

g
 A

4
1
 v

e
h
ic

u
la

r 
m

o
v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
to

 a
n
 

u
n
d
e
rp

a
s
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
tu

rn
 p

e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 m

o
v
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 
a
t 

g
ra

d
e
 c

ro
s
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

u
n
d
e
rp

a
s
s
e
s
.

C
ri
ti
c
a
l 
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

lie
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

  
C

o
lin

d
a
le

 G
ro

w
th

 A
re

a
 (

1
0
,0

0
0
 u

n
it
s
 +

 1
0
0
0
 

jo
b
s
) 

a
n
d
 B

re
n
t 

C
ro

s
s
 G

ro
w

th
 A

re
a
 (

7
,5

0
0
 

u
n
it
s
 +

 2
0
,0

0
0
 j
o
b
s
) 

a
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
c
o

n
s
tr

a
in

ts
a
n
d

d
e
liv

e
ra

b
ili

ty
 

is
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 

fr
o

m
 L

IP
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 i
n
 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
.

42



6
8

N
a

m
e
 /

 
L
o
c
a
ti
o
n

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

Is
s
u
e
 A

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 /

 B
e
n
e
fi
ts

 U
n
lo

c
k
e
d

F
u
n
d
in

g
R

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t

D
e
liv

e
ry

T
im

e
s
c
a

le
A

p
r 

2
0
1
3
 

P
o
s
it
io

n

W
e

s
t

H
e
n

d
o

n
E

s
ta

te

W
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 B

re
n
t 

C
ro

s
s
 C

ri
c
k
le

w
o
o
d
 G

ro
w

th
 A

re
a
 i
n
 L

B
 B

a
rn

e
t 

n
e
x
t 

to
 t

h
e
 L

B
 B

re
n
t 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 d
e
liv

e
ri

n
g
 2

,5
0
0
 

h
o
m

e
s
 a

lo
n
g
s
id

e
 t

h
e
 B

re
n
t 

R
e
s
e
rv

o
ir
 S

S
S

I.
  

In
v
o
lv

e
s
 m

a
jo

r 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

w
o
rk

s
 t

o
 A

5
 E

d
g
w

a
re

 R
o
a
d
 a

n
d
 

re
m

o
v
a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 G

y
ra

to
ry

 t
h
a
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 b

o
th

 a
 b

o
tt
le

n
e
c
k
 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 d

iv
id

e
s
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 u

n
d
e
rm

in
e
s
 

lo
c
a
l 
re

ta
il.

 

T
o
 d

a
te

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d
 s

c
a
le

 o
f 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 d

e
n
s
e
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 R

e
d
 L

in
e
 B

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 
is

 l
im

it
in

g
 t

h
e
 v

ia
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
, 

b
u
t 

a
 b

id
 f

o
r 

T
fL

 M
a
jo

r 
S

c
h
e
m

e
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

p
ri
n
c
ip

le
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 A

5
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
. 

A
5

 W
e

s
t 

H
e
n
d
o
n

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

S
ta

ti
o
n
 R

o
a
d
 

ju
n
c
ti
o
n

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t

F
e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 a
n
d
 

d
e
s
ig

n
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 

b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

u
s
in

g
 L

IP
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 i
n
 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
.

T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 p
la

n
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
m

a
jo

r 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 a

t 
th

is
 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 A

5
 t

o
 c

a
te

r 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 d
e
m

a
n
d
 

g
iv

e
n
 t

h
e
 s

c
a
le

 o
f 

g
ro

w
th

 a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

w
e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
d
 m

o
re

 g
e
n
e
ra

lly
 i
n
 

B
a
rn

e
t,
 a

n
d
 t

o
 p

re
v
e
n
t 

th
e
 s

tr
e
tc

h
 o

f 
th

e
 A

5
 

fr
o
m

 b
e
c
o
m

in
g
 a

 t
ra

ff
ic

 b
o
tt
le

n
e
c
k
. 

C
ri
ti
c
a
l 
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

lie
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

: 
C

o
lin

d
a

le
 

G
ro

w
th

 A
re

a
 (

1
0
,0

0
0
 u

n
it
s
 +

 1
0
0
0
 j
o
b
s
) 

a
n
d
 B

re
n
t 

C
ro

s
s
 G

ro
w

th
 A

re
a
 (

7
,5

0
0
 u

n
it
s
 +

 
2
0
,0

0
0
 j
o
b
s
) 

a
n
d
 i
s
 a

d
ja

c
e
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 W

e
s
t 

H
e

n
d

o
n

 E
s
ta

te
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

(2
,5

0
0

 u
n

it
s
 +

 
s
c
h
o
o
l)

 

£
5
,5

0
0
,0

0
0

2
0
1
1
-1

5
 

F
e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 
s
tu

d
y
 a

n
d
 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
 t

o
 

b
e

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

b
y
 t

h
e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
r.

£
1
0
0
k
 f

ro
m

 
T

fL
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 
u
p
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 
s
c
h
e
m

e

43



6
9

N
a

m
e
 /

 
L
o
c
a
ti
o
n

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

Is
s
u
e
 A

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 /

 B
e
n
e
fi
ts

 U
n
lo

c
k
e
d

F
u
n
d
in

g
R

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t

D
e
liv

e
ry

T
im

e
s
c
a

le
A

p
r 

2
0
1
3
 

P
o
s
it
io

n

W
h

e
ts

to
n

e
W

h
e
ts

to
n
e
 i
s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
B

a
rn

e
t’
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 w

h
e
re

 8
-1

0
 l
a
rg

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

s
it
e
s
 a

re
 c

o
m

in
g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

s
 

fo
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

e
x
t 

2
-3

 y
e
a
rs

, 
d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 a

p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 5

0
0
-1

0
0
0
 n

e
w

 h
o
m

e
s
 i
n
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 r

e
u
s
e
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

la
n
d
 o

r 
d
e
n
s
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
s
it
e
s
. 

A
t 

th
e

 c
e

n
tr

e
 o

f 
th

e
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

 i
s
 t

h
e
 m

a
jo

r 
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
A

1
0
0
0
 /

 A
1
0
9
 /

 A
5
1
0
9
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 s

ta
g
g
e
re

d
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 a
c
ts

 a
s
 a

 b
o
tt
le

n
e
c
k
 a

n
d
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 c
o

n
s
tr

a
in

t 
fo

r 
tr

a
ff

ic
 f

lo
w

s
 a

lo
n
g
 b

o
th

 a
rt

e
ri
a
l 
ro

u
te

s
. 

A
1
0
0
0
 /

 A
1
0
9
 

/ 
A

5
1
0
9
 

J
u
n
c
ti
o
n

R
e

a
lig

n
m

e
n

t

L
a
n
d
 a

s
s
e
m

b
ly

 
a
n
d

s
im

p
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 

c
ro

s
s
o

v
e

r
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
.

T
h
e
 T

fL
 N

o
rt

h
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 m

o
d
e
l 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 t

h
is

 
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 a

s
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
c
o
n
g
e
s
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

n
e
tw

o
rk

 c
o
n
s
tr

a
in

t 
fo

r 
th

is
 s

id
e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 

T
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 t

o
 

c
o
m

e
 f

o
rw

a
rd

s
, 

a
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 t

o
 l
im

it
e
d
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 a

t 
th

is
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 n

e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
. 

N
e
e
d
e
d
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

5
0
0
-1

0
0
0
 h

o
m

e
s
 

a
n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 c

o
n
g
e
s
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r

a
t 

ru
n
n
in

g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

th
e

 e
n

ti
re

 n
o

rt
h

 e
a

s
t 

o
f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h
 s

tr
e
e
t 

s
p
a
c
e
 f

o
r 

p
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

s
.

£
1

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
2
0
1
6
-2

0
2
0

F
e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 
a
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
c
o

n
s
tr

a
in

ts
a
n
d

d
e
liv

e
ra

b
ili

ty
 

is
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 

fr
o

m
 L

IP
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 i
n
 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
.

44



 

 

Summary 
This report sets out the proposal to delegate authority to make and enforce traffic orders to 
the London Councils Transport and Environment Committee (TEC), to facilitate the 
introduction of a new pan-London Safer Lorries scheme in conjunction with Transport for 
London (TfL) requiring minimum safety features for all HGVs over 3.5 tonnes. This is in 
replacement of a previous delegation agreed in April. 

 

Recommendations  
1. That the Environment Committee resolve to delegate authority to London 

Councils’ Transport and Environment Committee (“the Committee”) to 
exercise the following functions on behalf of the London Borough of Barnet:  

 
To make one or more traffic regulation orders for the purposes of the 
implementation across Greater London of the London Safer Lorry Scheme 
(as that Scheme is approved and/ or amended from time to time by the 
Committee), under section 6 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, and all 
other enabling powers, where it is in the collective interests of the 
Participating Authorities, and TfL as relevant, and a decision to make such an 
order(s) is to be taken only after consultation with each of them.  

 

Environment Committee 
 

16 September 2014 
  

Title  

London Safer Lorries Scheme – 
revised delegation of authority to 
make traffic orders 

Report of 
Declan Hoare, Lead Commissioner for Housing & 
Environment 

Wards All 

Status Public 

Enclosures                         Appendix A - Delegated Authority Letter from London 
Councils (29 July 2014)  

Officer Contact Details  
Declan Hoare, Declan.hoare@barnet.gov.uk 020 8359 4320 
Jane Shipman, (Senior Engineer, Re), 
jane.shipman@barnet.gov.uk 020 8359 7226 

AGENDA ITEM 8

45



 
To provide for the implementation and enforcement of any traffic regulation 
order(s) so made including but not limited to the monitoring of the 
effectiveness of the said implementation and enforcement, the examination of 
vehicles, the issue of general or individual consents, permissions or permits 
(if any) including the consideration of appeals arising from the refusal or 
conditioning of any such consents, permissions or permits, the erection of 
adequate signs (however the Scheme is described on the signs), liaison with 
the police, the prosecution of any criminal offences or civil contraventions 
arising under such order(s) and any amendments to the order(s) approved 
from time to time, the updating of technical information on new vehicle 
designs, the taking of all necessary steps to promote and make amending, 
supplementary and other variation order(s) affecting the primary order(s) and 
the determination and implementation of policy and the giving of advice. 

 

2. That the Environment Committee revoke the delegation dated 11 April 2014 
(published 14 April 2014) authorising the London Councils Transport and 
Environment Committee (TEC) to make and enforce pan-London traffic orders 
on behalf of the London Borough of Barnet. 
 

 
 
1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 
1.1 The proposed London Safer Lorries Scheme would require all vehicles over 

3.5 tonnes to have side guards and safety mirrors when driving in London to 
help reduce the number deaths and injuries resulting from collisions between 
vulnerable road users and Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGVs). A significant and 
disproportionate number of collisions involve HGVs, some of which are 
exempt from current national and European regulations on fitting safety 
features such as side guards and special proximity mirrors. 

 
1.2 At its meeting on 13 March 2014, London Councils Transport and 

Environment Committee (TEC) agreed to the principle of creating a new pan-
London traffic order requiring minimum safety features for all HGVs over 3.5 
tonnes. It also recommended that London local authorities and TfL agree to 
amend the TEC Agreement to allow the making and enforcement of pan-
London traffic orders to facilitate introduction of this Safer Lorries Scheme 
since it is uncertain whether TEC currently has the delegated authority from 
the London local authorities to make such an order. 

 
1.3 London Councils wrote to every borough seeking agreement to delegate 

authority to London Councils’ Transport and Environment Committee (TEC) to 
allow the making of a new London-wide traffic order, which would require all 
vehicles over 3.5 tonnes to have side guards and safety mirrors when driving 
in London (to help reduce the number of deaths and injuries resulting from 
collisions between vulnerable road users and Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGVs). 

 

1.4 To give TEC the required powers to create the order, they need signed 
delegated authority on the same terms and using the same wording from all 

46



33 London boroughs. The then Cabinet Member for Environment (exercising 
an Executive function) authorised the delegation in April 2014 on behalf of  
Barnet Council. 

 
1.5 Although the original delegation wording was intended to facilitate the making 

of orders for the London Safer Lorry Scheme, it was worded in more general 
terms to allow flexibility in the development of the scheme, for example any 
changes the scheme title or scope following consultations and detailed 
design. 

 
1.6 Concerns were raised by some boroughs that the delegated powers could be 

used for other purposes and one borough, maintained that whilst they support 
the principle of the scheme, they would not sign the proposed delegation 
unless the wording was changed. 

 
1.7 On 17 July, TEC therefore agreed to revise the wording of the delegation so 

that all authorities would be in a position to sign. The revised wording now 
refers explicitly to the Safer Lorry Scheme. 

 
1.8 Consequently approval is now sought to revise the terms of the delegation to 

London Councils Transport and Environment Committee. 
 
2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
2.1 The proposed delegation would allow progression of the Safer Lorries 

Scheme to help address road safety issues. While other approaches would be 
possible to introduce a pan London scheme London Councils and TfL officers 
have identified this as the best approach for this proposal. 

 
2.2 Although the previous delegation could not be used by London Councils 

without identical delegation from all other boroughs it may be confusing to 
leave the previous delegation standing. 
 

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 

3.1 Not to make the delegation to London Councils TEC.  
 
3.2 Not revoke the previous delegation.  

 
4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 

 
4.1 Following agreement officers will confirm to London Councils that the 

delegation had been made in the agreed terms. With identical agreement from 
all authorities this will permit amendment of the TEC governing agreement 
and allow London Councils to promote the pan London traffic order for the 
scheme. 
 

5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 

5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
5.1.1 The three strategic objectives set out in the 2013 – 2016 Corporate Plan are:  

47



• Promote responsible growth, development and success across 

the borough. 

• Support families and individuals that need it – promoting 

independence, learning and well-being. 

• Improve the satisfaction of residents and businesses with the 

London Borough of Barnet as a place to live, work and study. 

5.1.2 The delegation to London Councils TEC will contribute to the ability of the 

borough to meet these objectives through the pan-London Safer Lorries 

initiative. This would address the priority “To maintain a well designed, 

attractive and accessible place, with sustainable infrastructure across the 

borough” and also, through the expected safety benefits, contribute to 

“creating better life chances for children and young people across the 

borough”, “sustaining a strong partnership with the local NHS, so that families 

and individuals can maintain and improve their physical and mental health”, 

“promoting a healthy, active, independent and informed over 55 population in 

the borough to encourage and support our residents to age well” and 

“promoting family and community well-being and encourage engaged, 

cohesive and safe communities.” 

5.1.3 The proposal would also contribute to the Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
theme “Keeping Well” by reducing the risk and perceived risk of serious injury 
to cyclists (and pedestrians) so encouraging activity. 
 
 

5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 
Property, Sustainability) 

There are no direct impacts on Finance, Procurement, Staffing, IT or 
Property through making the delegation. Agreement allows the Council to 
be included in this pan-London scheme in a way that could may be more 
beneficial than alternatives in terms of performance and value for money.  

 
5.3 Legal and Constitutional References 
5.3.1 In accordance with paragraph 8.01(a) of Article 8 of the Constitution, the 

Council may establish joint arrangements with one or more local authorities 

for the purposes of exercising functions which are executive functions. 

5.3.2 Under section 8 of ‘Responsibility for Functions’ in the Constitution the London 

Councils Transport and Environment Committee Agreement dated 13 

December 2001 is identified as a joint arrangement for the discharge of 

functions. 

5.3.3 London Councils Transport and Environment Committee (TEC) is a joint 

committee established under the Association of London Government 

Transport and Environment Committee Governing Agreement dated 13 

December 2001 (“the TEC agreement”). It is responsible for the exercise of 

those functions delegated to it by the 33 London local authorities and 

Transport for London. 

5.3.4 The governing agreement was amended in 2009 to include changes to 

simplify the arrangements for delegating the exercise of additional functions to 

48



the TEC.  It is therefore possible to delegate authority to the joint committee 

without a full variation to the TEC Agreement i.e. without a deed of variation 

needing to be agreed by all the participating authorities and TfL. This can be 

undertaken using the process under Schedule 2 Part 3(D) of the Agreement, 

which was introduced by a variation in June 2009 and permits authorities to 

take their decisions to delegate the specified functions to TEC and then 

confirm that decision to London Councils in writing. 

5.3.5 Section 1 of Responsibility for Functions reserves to full Council delegation of 

significant functions to other local authorities or their executives. It does not 

refer explicitly to delegation to a joint committee. The current delegation is not 

considered significant, applying as it does to making one or more traffic 

regulation orders for a specific scheme (reducing the scope of the previous 

delegation). 

5.3.6 Section 5 of Responsibility for Functions identifies that Committees are 

authorised to discharge all functions within their terms of reference except 

those referred to full Council. Annex A to Responsibility for Functions sets out 

the terms of reference for the Environment Committee which includes specific 

responsibilities for commissioning Road Safety, Transport & Traffic 

Management. 

 
5.4 Risk Management 
5.4.1 The delegation would permit London Councils to introduce a pan-London 

traffic order or orders in relation to the Safer Lorries Scheme which would 

apply to roads within the Borough. Prior to making any such order(s) the 

Council will be consulted and this should be sufficient to prevent the 

introduction of orders not supported by the London Borough of Barnet. The 

delegation can also be revoked by the Council at any time under the terms of 

the 2009 amendment. 

5.4.2 Failure to make the delegation may harm the Council's reputation if it prevents 

or delays introduction or effective operation of the proposed Safer Lorries 

Scheme. 

 
5.5 Equalities and Diversity  
5.5.1 The Equality Act 2010 requires a decision-maker to have ‘due regard’ to 

achieving a number of equality goals: (i) to eliminate discrimination, 

harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by the Act; 

(ii) to advance equality of opportunity between those with protected 

characteristics and those without; and (iii) to foster good relations between 

persons with a relevant protected characteristic and those without. The 

relevant protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, 

pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.  

It also covers marriage and civil partnership with regard to eliminating 

discrimination. 

5.5.2 The proposed delegation is not considered to compromise this. 

5.5.3 An impact assessment has been prepared by TfL in relation to the Safer 

49



Lorries scheme that identified a very small negative impact on black and 

minority ethnic (BAME) groups working in this sector as a result of these 

groups generally being over-represented as owners of small and medium 

enterprises.  

5.5.4 Larger firms can absorb the necessary costs to make the required changes 

than small firms but the cost of necessary equipment is low. Smaller firms 

could also benefit from fitting the additional safety equipment as it would 

enable their business to qualify for contracts which require higher safety 

standards. 

 
5.6 Consultation and Engagement 
5.6.1 An informal non-statutory consultation on the London Safer Lorry Scheme is 

planned by TfL this summer. This will provide an opportunity for the industry, 

the public and other stakeholders to comment on the proposal and will allow 

London Councils and TfL to use these views to inform the further development 

of the scheme. The results of this informal consultation will be presented at 

TEC in October, and will inform TEC’s decision as to whether to commence 

the statutory order-making process. 

5.6.2 Should the proposal proceed it is a legal requirement to give public notice of 

the proposal and carry out formal statutory consultation on the proposed traffic 

order(s) which would implement the scheme. As part of the statutory 

consultation process, any orders may be subject to a public inquiry. TfL 

therefore plans to hold a public inquiry prior to the commencement of the 

formal statutory consultation. This would be likely to take place in late 2014. 

5.6.3 Following the public inquiry, a formal statutory consultation would then be 

carried out and reported to TEC to help inform their decision on whether to 

make the order. 

 
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
6.1 The Cabinet Member for Environment agreed on 11 April 2014 delegation of 

authority to make and enforce pan-London traffic orders to the London 
Councils Transport and Environment Committee (TEC) to facilitate, in the first 
instance, the introduction of a new pan-London Safer Lorries scheme 
requiring minimum safety features for all HGVs over 3.5 tonnes. 
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?Id=5240 refers. 

6.2 London Councils’ Transport and Environment Committee 13 March 2014 Item 
No: 8 Safer Lorry Scheme  
http://www.londoncouncils.gov.uk/committees/agenda.htm?pk_agenda_items
=5606 refers 

6.3 London Councils’ Transport and Environment Committee 17 July 2014 Item 
No: 8 Safer Lorry Scheme  
http://www.londoncouncils.gov.uk/committees/agenda.htm?pk_agenda_items
=5700 refers. 

 

50



Appendix A 
 
Borough TEC representative 
All London Boroughs 
 
cc: Borough Chief Executive  
 
 
29 July 2014 
 
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
London Safer Lorry Scheme Proposal – Revised Delegation and Further Action 
Required by the end of September 2014 
 
I wrote to every borough on 20th March seeking agreement to delegate authority to London 
Councils’ Transport and Environment Committee (TEC) to allow the making of a new 
London-wide traffic order, which will require all vehicles over 3.5 tonnes to have side guards 
and safety mirrors when driving in London to help reduce the tragic number deaths and 
injuries resulting from collisions between vulnerable road users and Heavy Goods Vehicles 
(HGVs). I am very grateful to all those who returned the signed delegations in time for the 
recent TEC meeting on 17 July 2014. 
 
Although the proposed delegation wording was specifically intended to facilitate the making 
of orders for the London Safer Lorry Scheme, the delegation was worded in more general 
terms to allow flexibility in the development of the scheme, for example any changes the 
scheme title or scope following consultations and detailed design. However, concerns were 
raised that the delegated powers might be used for other purposes. Despite written 
assurances that this would not happen and any use of the delegated powers would require 
consultation with all boroughs and subsequent TEC approval, one borough, maintained that 
whilst they support the principle of the scheme, they would not sign the proposed delegation 
unless the wording was changed. 
 
To give TEC the required powers to create the order(s), we must have signed delegated 
authority on the same terms and using the same wording from all 33 London boroughs. On 
17 July, TEC therefore agreed to revise the wording of the delegation so that all authorities 
would be in a position to sign. The revised wording does now refer explicitly to the Safer 
Lorry Scheme.    
 
For information, I attach the 17 July TEC report, which gives further information about the 
proposal, including plans to consult with boroughs shortly on enforcement options. 
 
I apologise to all the authorities who have already signed the original delegation in asking 
you to provide your signed delegated authority once again. Please complete, sign and return 
the attached revised delegation form by the end of September 2014. It is important to get the 
delegation signed by all authorities before the next TEC meeting in October 2014 to avoid 
delays in progressing this important safety proposal.  
 
 
 
 
Yours faithfully, 

 
Nick Lester 51



Corporate Director of Services 
 
 
 
 
 

          
 
 
To: London Councils 
59 ½ Southwark Street 
London  
SE1 0AL 
 
FAO: Andrew Luck 
 
 
 
I????????????????????[name and position of authorised person] 
 
on behalf of????????????????????????.. [name of authority] 
 
hereby confirm that my authority has resolved to delegate authority to London 
Councils’ Transport and Environment Committee to exercise the following functions, in 
the following terms:  
 
To make one or more traffic regulation orders for the purposes of the implementation 
across Greater London of the London Safer Lorry Scheme (as that Scheme is 
approved and/ or amended from time to time by the Committee), under section 6 of the 
Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, and all other enabling powers, where it is in the 
collective interests of the Participating Authorities, and TfL as relevant, and a decision 
to make such an order(s) is to be taken only after consultation with each of them.  
 
To provide for the implementation and enforcement of any traffic regulation order(s) so 
made including but not limited to the monitoring of the effectiveness of the said 
implementation and enforcement, the examination of vehicles, the issue of general or 
individual consents, permissions or permits (if any) including the consideration of 
appeals arising from the refusal or conditioning of any such consents, permissions or 
permits, the erection of adequate signs (however the Scheme is described on the 
signs), liaison with the police, the prosecution of any criminal offences or civil 
contraventions arising under such order(s) and any amendments to the order(s) 
approved from time to time, the updating of technical information on new vehicle 
designs, the taking of all necessary steps to promote and make amending, 
supplementary and other variation order(s) affecting the primary order(s) and the 
determination and implementation of policy and the giving of advice. 
 
 
 
Signed  
 
 
 
??????????????. 
 
 
Date 
 
 
??????????????. 

 
52



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

53



54

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Summary 

The Committee is requested to consider and comment on the items included in the 2014/15 
work programme 
 

 

Recommendations  
1. That the Committee consider and comment on the items included in the 

2014/15 work programme 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Environment Committee 
 

16 September 2014 

Title  
Environment Committee Work 
Programme 

Report of Pam Wharfe, Strategic Director of Growth and Environment 

Wards All 

Status Public 

Enclosures                         Appendix A - Committee Work Programme June 2014 to April 
2015 

Officer Contact Details  
Mari Lugangira - Governance Service Officer 
maria.lugangira@barnet.gov.uk  020 8359 2761 

AGENDA ITEM 9

55



1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 
1.1 The Environment Committee Work Programme 2014/15 indicates forthcoming 

items of business. 
 

1.2 The work programme of this Committee is intended to be a responsive tool, 
which will be updated on a rolling basis following each meeting, for the 
inclusion of areas which may arise through the course of the year.  
 

1.3 The Committee is empowered to agree its priorities and determine its own 
schedule of work within the programme.  

 
 
2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
2.1 There are no specific recommendations in the report. The Committee is 

empowered to agree its priorities and determine its own schedule of work 
within the programme.  

 
 

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 

3.1 N/A 
 

4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

4.1 Any alterations made by the Committee to its Work Programme will be 
published on the Council’s website. 
 

5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 

5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
 

5.1.1 The Committee Work Programme is in accordance with the Council’s strategic 
objectives and priorities as stated in the Corporate Plan 2013-16. 
 

5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 
Property, Sustainability) 
 

5.2.1 None in the context of this report. 
 

 
5.3 Legal and Constitutional References 

 
5.3.1 The Terms of Reference of the Environment Committee is included in the 

Constitution, Responsibility for Functions, Annex A. 
 
 
 
 
 

56



5.4 Risk Management 
 

5.4.1 None in the context of this report. 
 
 

5.5 Equalities and Diversity  
 

5.5.1 None in the context of this report. 
 

 
5.6 Consultation and Engagement 

 
5.6.1 None in the context of this report. 

 
 

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
6.1 None. 
 
 

57



58

This page is intentionally left blank



 

       
 

 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 o
f 
B
a
rn
e
t 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 W
o
rk
 

P
la
n
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
4
 -
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
5
 

 

 

  
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t:
 M
a
ri
a
 L
u
g
a
n
g
ir
a
 0
2
0
 8
3
5
9
 2
7
6
1
 m
a
ri
a
.l
u
g
a
n
g
ir
a
@
b
a
rn
e
t.
g
o
v
.u
k
  

 59



 

P
a
g

e
 2

 o
f 

4
 

 S
u

b
je

c
t 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 r
e

q
u

e
s

te
d

 
R

e
p

o
rt

 O
f 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

1
6
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
4
 

L
IP
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
S
p
e
n
d
in
g
 

S
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 A
p
p
ro
v
a
l 

 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
in
c
lu
s
io
n
 i
n
 

B
a
rn
e
t’
s
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 L
o
c
a
l 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 A
n
n
u
a
l 

S
p
e
n
d
in
g
 S
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 t
o
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

fo
r 
L
o
n
d
o
n
. 

 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
L
e
a
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 

 

  

S
a
fe
r 
L
o
rr
y
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 -
 

R
e
v
is
e
d
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
t 

 

T
o
 d
e
le
g
a
te
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 t
o
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 

C
o
u
n
c
ils
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 (
T
E
C
) 
to
 m
a
k
e
, 

im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 e
n
fo
rc
e
 t
ra
ff
ic
 o
rd
e
rs
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 a
 p
a
n
-L
o
n
d
o
n
 

S
a
fe
r 
L
o
rr
ie
s
 s
c
h
e
m
e
, 
a
n
d
 t
o
 r
e
v
o
k
e
 

a
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 d
e
le
g
a
ti
o
n
. 

 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
L
e
a
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 

 

  

1
8
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
4
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

 
T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 f
iv
e
 y
e
a
r 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
, 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 
fo
r 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
ta
rg
e
ts
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 t
h
e
 M
T
F
S
 

a
n
d
 

p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
fo
r 
G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

 

  

P
a
rk
in
g
 P
o
lic
y
 

 
T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 P
a
rk
in
g
 P
o
lic
y
 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 a
 p
e
ri
o
d
 o
f 
p
u
b
lic
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
fo
r 
G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
L
e
a
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 

 

60



 S
u

b
je

c
t 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 r
e

q
u

e
s

te
d

 
R

e
p

o
rt

 O
f 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

R
o
a
d
 S
a
fe
ty
 M
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

 
T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r:
 

i)
 

a
 s
ix
-m
o
n
th
 u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

fr
o
m
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 o
n
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 2
0
 

M
P
H
 Z
o
n
e
s
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 

G
ro
u
p
 

ii)
 

a
n
 u
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 o
th
e
r 
ro
a
d
 

s
a
fe
ty
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
. 

 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
L
e
a
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r,
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
fo
r 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

 

  

2
7
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
5
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t,
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 &
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

S
tr
e
e
tS
c
e
n
e
 F
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 

C
h
a
rg
e
s
 

 

T
o
 m
a
k
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

P
o
lic
y
 &
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 o
n
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t,
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 &
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 F
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 C
h
a
rg
e
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
fo
r 
G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

 

  

P
a
rk
in
g
 P
ilo
t 
S
c
h
e
m
e
s
 

 
T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

o
n
 
th
e
 
fi
n
d
in
g
s
 
a
ri
s
in
g
 
fr
o
m
 
th
e
 

p
a
rk
in
g
 
p
ilo
t 
s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 
in
 
E
d
g
w
a
re
 

a
n
d
 
H
ig
h
 
B
a
rn
e
t 

to
w
n
 
c
e
n
tr
e
s
 

(R
e

fe
rr

a
l 

fr
o

m
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

&
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
).

 

  

H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
L
e
a
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r,
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
fo
r 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

 

  

1
0
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
5
 

61



 S
u

b
je

c
t 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 r
e

q
u

e
s

te
d

 
R

e
p

o
rt

 O
f 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 

 

T
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 

fo
r 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 

o
f 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 S
tr
e
e
t 
S
c
e
n
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

  

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
fo
r 
G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

 

  

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

 
T
o
 a
g
re
e
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
. 

 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
fo
r 
G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

 

  

2
8
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
5
 

P
a
rk
in
g
 P
o
lic
y
 (
C
a
s
h
 

M
e
te
rs
) 
T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 

G
ro
u
p
 

 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
 1
2
-m
o
n
th
 u
p
d
a
te
 

re
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 o
n
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

P
o
lic
y
 (
C
a
s
h
 M
e
te
rs
) 
T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 

F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
. 

 

  
H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
L
e
a
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 

 

2
0
 M
P
H
 Z
o
n
e
s
 T
a
s
k
 

a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 

 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
 1
2
-m
o
n
th
 u
p
d
a
te
 

re
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 o
n
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 2
0
 M
P
H
 

Z
o
n
e
s
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 

 

  
H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
L
e
a
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 

 

62


	Agenda
	6a Members' Item - Welsh Harp
	7 Local Implementation Plan Annual Spending Submission 2015/16
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	8 London Safer Lorries Scheme - Revised Delegation of Authority to Make Traffic Orders
	Appendix A

	9 Committee Forward Work Programme
	Appendix A - Environment Committee Work Plan


